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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEBEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUI Sai Chung, aged 77, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group.

He is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the
Group's business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales
functions of the Group. He has more than 54 years’ experience in the plastics

industry.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 75, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations
and administration of the Group. He has more than 54 years' experience in the
plastics industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The

Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, aged 59, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department and Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group.
He is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology
and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering Management
degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988
and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 35 years'

experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, aged 47, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of
plastic materials in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree
in Civil Engineering from Queen’s University, Ontario, Canada and also holds a
Master degree of Business and Administration from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He joined the Group in 2004 and has over 19 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kuen is
the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management of the subsidiaries
of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (who is the Director of the
Company).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. HUI Man Wai, aged 54, is the Business Development Manager and is

responsible for market exploration and business development of the Group.
He holds a Master degree of Business and Administration (Executive) from City
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1997 and has over 27 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Man Wai is
the son of Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (who is the Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company).

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 50, is the General Manager of Dongguan
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible
for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches
for plastic industries in Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in Economics)
from Queen'’s University, Ontario, Canada. He joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 24 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management
of the subsidiaries of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (who is the Director
of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (“Mr. Ho"), aged 73, has been an Independent Non-

executive Director of the Company since |st April 2003. He is also the chairman
of each of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Ho is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences and is
an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ho is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326), a company is
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange™).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEBEAERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. CHING Yu Lung (“Mr. Ching"), aged 54, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 9th February 2009. He is also
the member of each of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and also the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Ching currently serves as a financial consultant. He
also serves as the independent non-executive director of each of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 754), Shenzhen Investment Holdings
Bay Area Development Company Limited (stock code: 737) and Luzhou Bank
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1983), all of them are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Ching was
an independent non-executive director of Termbray Industries International
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 93) from November 2016 to April 2022 which

was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ching obtained a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master degree in Business
Administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006, respectively. He is
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and member of American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ching has more than 31| years of

experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting.

Mr. YU Chi Kwong (“Mr. Yu"), aged 56, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since |st April 2020. He is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Yu is the Business Manager of an international insurance company in Hong Kong.
He holds a Bachelor degree of Science with Honours in Applied Chemistry from
Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master degree of Business Administration
from the University of South Australia. He is also a Fellow Chartered Financial
Practitioner and a Chartered Life Practitioner of the Asia Pacific Financial
Services Association. Mr. Yu started the career in plastics industry and had
accumulated more than 20 years' experiences in the industry, which included
holding managerial positions in various multinational companies for plastic

materials sales and product marketing in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Tat Ching ("Mr. Ng"), aged 69, is a Director and President of Ngai
Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong
Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and Ngai
Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and is responsible for the

overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies.

Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and
an executive director of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and

has over 43 years' experiences in plastic industries globally.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng has held several key positions in various
multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and product

marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 51, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai
and other cities in Eastern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from
University of Toronto. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 26 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the
son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (both are the
Directors of the Company).

EENREEEEANEGRE

SEEEAR

REAKE(RELD 9F  HRA
TRENERAR  RATRER(EE)
ARATR RERTIIREBHARAAL
RITREN(LE)ARAAZEEHRA
o BECREEARCEBEELE -

RAERARBBEPXABREZIEN S
TEM(EEEE  BERTR) BN
—HANEFMAREE ¥/ LAKER
BZBIMARMITESRZ — - WRERBXE
BERERAN+=F&5R -

RIMAREER - REEGREEBERD
FEE2RR BETAMEIRZHZH
EREMMIGHEREETIE -

FABEE SR DEERAEBER
HBRARZARKE  BE LiBMEME
RitE e NI TIHER - #HE
NREMAE REEHAZREANBREZ
XEBLTE - FR—ANNFMARE
B EEELTSEETEREBR TN
FRR - FFAGREERFFERICE(ERR
A2 EE)M R FMEF AR ERFTARE
FE(MERARBZER)INILE ©

ANNUAL REPORT FE R 23/24

7



CHAIRMAN'’S

STATEMENT
::Jﬁ*ﬁﬂz




RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year
ended 30th June 2024. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover
of HK$1,276,350,000 (2023: HK$1,177,827,000) and loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$18,041,000 (2023: HK$52,007,000). Loss per
share for the year were HK4.89 cents (2023: HK14.09 cents). To retain sufficient
capital for future business development, the Board of Directors (the “Board")

does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

In 2023/24, geopolitical tensions prevailed, major central banks underwent
changes in monetary policies, and the momentum of global economic growth
continued to weaken, resulting in a decline in crude oil prices and a highly
challenging macro environment. Amid adversities, the Group continuously
attuned and optimised its product lines, consistently improved production
facilities, and actively maintained its core customer base while expanding into
new customer sources, demonstrating strong operational resilience. For the year
ended 30th June 2024, the Group's total turnover reached HK$1,276,350,000
(2023: HK$1,177,827,000), an 8.4% increase against last year.

During the year under review, despite the challenging external environment,
the Group vigorously pursued product transformation and increased the
proportion of processing business, leading to an increase in overall gross profit
by a marked 34.9% to HK$199,263,000 (2023: HK$147,704,000). Gross profit
margin also improved, rising 3.1 percentage points year-on-year to |5.6%.
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company narrowed significantly
by 65.3% to HK$18,041,000 when compared with the same period last year
(2023: HK$52,007,000). Basic loss per share was HK4.89 cents (2023: HK14.09
cents). It is worth noting that through the Group's unremitting efforts, operating
performance has been steadily improving every half year since last year.
Compared with the first half of the year, its second half of 2023/24 continued
to show improvement, and for the full year, it recorded operating profit of
HK$ 18,098,000 versus operating loss of HK$34,237,000 in the previous year.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Business Review (Continued)

To reserve funds for business development, the Board does not recommend

payment of a final dividend.

For the colorants, pigments and compounded plastic resins business, the Group
continued to consolidate cooperation with existing customers across industries
such as automotive applications, food packaging and new energy, providing
strong support for its traditional businesses. Geopolitical situations compelled,
some customers have adjusted their business needs, and heeding that the
Group optimised its product direction and offered high-value-added processing
services to international automotive companies and overseas electronic
product organisations, as such bolstered its market competitiveness. During
the year, turnover of the business segment increased by 25.8% year-on-year to
HK$367,439,000 (2023: HK$292,047,000), with gross profit margin widening
slightly by 2.6 percentage points. Profit before taxation soared to HK$25,697,000,
an increase of 71.3% of the previous year (2023: HK$15,000,000).

Tied mainly to the export market sentiment in Europe and the United States, the
performance of the engineering plastic products business is developing relatively
stable currently. Turnover of the business was basically the same as last year,
with a slight decrease of [.1% to HK$136,969,000 (2023: HK$138,532,000).
Gross profit margin of the business grew by |.5 percentage points. Profit before
taxation surged by 66.8% to HK$10,901,000 (2023: HK$6,535,000). The end
products of the segment include general household appliances such as household
products, electrical appliances and high-end kitchenware. The Group will
continue to focus on preserving the segment’s customer base, which comprises
small home appliances and large toy manufacturers, while looking to tap new
customer sources to increase market share. At the same time, it will pay close
attention to market dynamics to ensure it is prepared to seize opportunities

when the market recovers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

During the year, market consumption sentiment was far from satisfactory, with
customer budgets remaining low. However, with the sales team pressing on with
expanding new customer sources, the Group was able to raise the overall sales
volume of the plastic raw material trading business. The segment saw a 3.3%
year-on-year increase in turnover to HK$771,942,000 (2023: HK$747,248,000),
with gross profit margin widening by a slight |.| percentage points. Loss
before taxation narrowed by a significant 43.8% to HK$39,728,000 (2023:
HK$70,704,000). The Group believes that if plastic material prices remain stable,
the loss will likely be further diluted.

Prospects

In the second half of 2024, while the geopolitical landscape and economic
environment will still be fraught with uncertainties, the market expects the
US Federal Reserve to start lowering interest rates, which might benefit the
Group's financial condition. All considered, the Group will, as in the past, adopt
sound business strategies and prudent financial management approaches, push
to effectively integrate resources, develop new revenue channels and customer
groups, as well as fostering a second growth curve by continuing to promote
business development in the ASEAN region. Powered by dual drivers, it will
strive to enhance economic efficiency and support the Group’s long-term

development.

In the challenging business environment, customers are maintaining their low-
inventory strategy and are cautious in placing orders. In response, the Group has
turned to seizing the rapidly growing OEM demand from domestic and overseas
companies, thereby managing to counter aforementioned blows and achieve
good results. In light of this, the Group will make every effort in the future
to grab market development opportunities, continue to expand its product
portfolio, and timely adjust business direction to enhance market penetration
and build distinctive competitive advantages. Moreover, apart from strengthening
close cooperation with existing customers and suppliers, the Group will continue
to explore opportunities to expand its sales network and find more potential
end-customers from sustainable development industries such as new energy

vehicles, so as to improve its revenue and profitability.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Prospects (Continued)

At the end of June this year, the Group established its first sales point in the
ASEAN market in Vietnam. With a stable investment environment, substantial
domestic demand and a strong manufacturing index, the Vietnam market holds
great potential and is expected to play an important role in the Group's growth
strategy. Due to political and economic factors, many overseas customers are
considering shifting part of their production processes from China to Vietnam,
resulting in a surge of urgent orders. The Group will seize this new opportunity,
enhance its supporting measures, and work diligently to fill the business gap,
aiming to further expand the business coverage in the Vietnamese market, and
in turn markedly push up revenue and net profit. In the next three years, the
Group anticipates the business in Vietnam to mature and reach a significant

scale, becoming a key revenue pillar that contributes considerable profits.

Although the future macro environment will remain complex and volatile, rather
difficult to predict, the Group believes it will be able to fully seize the new
opportunities presented by continuous growth of the market. Building on the
unwavering support of customers and shareholders, its years of rich industry
experience, along with the leadership of the management team and the hard
work of all employees, the Group will continue to uphold its professional and
prudent management strategies and pragmatic approaches. It is confident in its
ability to overcome various challenges, stand out in the market, and succeed in

maximising shareholder interests.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow
and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June
2024, the Group has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately
HK$622,903,000 of which approximately HK$359,993,000 have been utilised
and were secured by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and legal
charges on certain property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights, investment properties and restricted bank deposits in Mainland China
and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes |5, 16, |7, and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash and cash equivalents as
at 30th June 2024 amounted to approximately HK$104,233,000. The Group's
gearing ratio as at 30th June 2024 was approximately 77.6%, based on the total
borrowings of approximately HK$385,873,000 and the shareholders’ funds of
approximately HK$497,127,000.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company’s contingent
liabilities are disclosed in Notes 34 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally
denominated in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations
and manages its exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from

time to time.

At 30th June 2024, the maximum notional amount for the outstanding
settlement committed by the Group in respect of forward contracts in order
to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its operations is as

follows:

Chairman’s Statement

ERHE
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30th June 2024, the Group had approximately 628 full-time employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive
scheme which is geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of
its employees, as an incentive to motivate its employees to increase their
contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social or medical insurance
coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its employees

depending on the location of such employees.
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APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing
support, my fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past
year. The Group will, as always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive
for its long-term development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming

at attaining more promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2024
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Report of the Directors
EETHRE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's
performance for the year ended 30th June 2024 as well as prospects of the
Group's business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 14
of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to

external environment. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i) Volatility of economic climate in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which is

closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of Mainland
China, the Group is continuing to expand the overseas markets; and
continues to take a cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and

recognises the need to sustain sales momentum.

(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their

obligations.
The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise

any credit risk associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEWV (Continued)

Particulars of Important Events
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the

financial year.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
the financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 8 to 14 and 69 to 186,
respectively, of this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance, and Compliance with Relevant Laws
and Regulations

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully
committed to making a difference for its staff, the community and the common
good. During the year there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to

treasure the staff, community and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and Mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year ended 30th June 2024 and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations

in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and
Suppliers
() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the
Group, the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and

development for employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers’ needs and
continues to contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic
materials which suit the customers’ requirements, which include their

social responsibility and sustainability.
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BUSINESS REVIEWV (Continued)

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and

Suppliers (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of
suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good
quality and ethics. The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of

them to comply with our social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 61.

At a meeting held on 28th February 2024, the Directors resolved not to declare

any interim dividend for the six months ended 31st December 2023.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 30 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in Note |5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note

29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2024, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$67,195,000 (2023: HK$69,574,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus,
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 187.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 17th November 2022, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the Company

on 22nd November 2012. Under the terms of the Scheme, the Directors may, at

their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options to subscribe

for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated

therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

0]

(ii)

(i)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options
to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to

the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an
offer to take up Share Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix
Il of the circular issued by the Company on [8th October 2022.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No
Share Option may be granted under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share
Options granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any
other option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options)
in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
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(v)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) may in its absolute discretion determine, save that
such period shall not expire more than 10 years from the date on which a

Share Option is granted and accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of

HK$ | is payable on acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option,
(i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

The remaining life of the Scheme
The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
between [7th November 2022 and [6th November 2032 to offer the

grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

No Share Options have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 are set out

in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. NG Chi Ming

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen

Mr. HUI Man Wai

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul*

Mr. CHING Yu Lung*

Mr. YU Chi Kwong*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. CHING Yu Lung retire
by rotation in accordance with clause 84 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision B.2.3 as set out in Appendix C| of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules™), separate resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company
to approve the further appointment of Mr. CHING Yu Lung as an Independent

Non-executive Director at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme
is to link total compensation for senior management with the achievement of
annual and long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at
competitive industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain
key executives essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive
scheme includes an equity component that is designed to align the long-term
interest of management with those of shareholders. The remuneration package
comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and

incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship

fees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director

is entitled under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance, the
Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of companies

in the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2024, the interest and short positions of each Director and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO™)), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") contained in

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2024
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BB AR ARNEE

Personal interests  Corporate interests ~Family interests ~ Other interests
Name of Directors Espg fBARER EEER ZRER Hitgs
Mr. HUI Sai Chung TSk E Long Positions #f & 20,137,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FEE R Long Positions #7A& 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) —
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen SFAREE Long Positions 47 A& - - — (0)
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAEEE Long Positions 1A — — — (d)
Mr. HUI Man Wai FNERE Long Positions #1 & 250,000 — — (e)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

REFTHRRA



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

(d)

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)).
In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr.
HUI Sai Chung. Mr. HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5
class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win

respectively.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In
addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong. Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-

convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are
held by Mr. HUI Yan Kuen.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are
held by Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EERBETHRAEREAT
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, S H MBS EE R AR
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE BHEZEER/BKXR
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (#&)
(Continued)
(e)  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which (e) EEFE Good Benefit (R =ZF ZM4F XA
held 196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2024, are as follows: =T HFEARRAF 196,721,500 %5 )%
Rz BT
Number Percentage
of shares of holding
Name of Directors BEEHR BHEE ERES L
Mr. HUI Sai Chung Eiguaibtaa 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FFEL . 5 A4 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Man Wai X REAE 360 3.6%
Others Hith 620 6.2%
10,000 100.0%

As at 30th June 2024, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting RZZE_MFA=+H  TNEEH
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to EREBBRMBERARBIEEEERL
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the f&fh s - Mz AR E & T Ngai Hing
said non-voting deferred shares. (International) Company Limited AJ 88 £
MEIRFRRIER D 2 A

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

BFEEREEELEROEAE
Personal interests Other interests
Name of Directors EEHR B A R HifEs
Mr. HUI Sai Chung FF IR S A4 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FFEY S S 200,000 50,000 (ii)
Notes: P aE -
0) These shares are held by Ever Win. 0] ZE AN B Ever WinFFH e
(i) These shares are held by Evergrow. (i) HFERAD B Evergrow A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the
subsidiaries of the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust
for the Group as at 30th June 2024, none of the Directors and chief executives
have any beneficial or non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company and associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above:

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under
the age of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or

debentures of the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 30th June 2024, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not
been notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, other than those of the

Directors and chief executives as disclosed above.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major

suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier 29%

Five largest suppliers combined 79%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers is less than 13% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th
June 2024 and therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major

customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of
Directors and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal
controls and risk evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHING Yu Lung
and Mr. YU Chi Kwong. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the annual

financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2024 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retires and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2024

Report of the Directors
EETHS

BB
R WK BB R AACE R 6B AT
B REMEERSRIEN S EREE
PERIERE o

REEFS

E
FRHER

BB —ZE-NFEAA-++LH

ANNUAL REPORT FE R 23/24

29



30

Corporate Governance Report

EXREAHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk
management throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The
Company emphasises on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective

corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out
in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the
Appendix Cl of the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended

30th June 2024, except for the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision C.2.| of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
Annual Report, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the "Directors’) of the
Company has not appointed any individual to be the chief executive. The roles
of the chief executive have been performed collectively by all the executive
Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that
this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when

it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 of

the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. The Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings

set out therein during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance

ARANEFTEABHENRIOIMER -
MEFPHITEFHIIFNTESTNEA TR
FOE BRARFREI4ZCENERRE
BERREEIN  EFTENE 2HILEEM
PR m% - RESHMEKR MEH 2
& -BFEUEMIEEHHER AR
SRTARTEZ -NFRA EFgaH

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship between Board
members. The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc
basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total of

three regular board meetings, three ad-hoc board meetings and one general

meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set BRIT=ZATHEFSER AFNES
out below: EERLABERAE -BEFSHERLE
FiRENT -
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance #5l Attendance BR3R Attendance
Attendants HEE flgrs HERE SFRE HEAY AR HERH™
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) FTHIREE(EE) 3 3 3 3
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FES LA
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) (5| F/E# Z B4 ) 3 3 3 3 I |
Mr. NG Chi Ming REHLE 3 3 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen BN it 3 3 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Man Wai AXEEE 3 3 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey FAELE 3 3 3 3 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFATEE:
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul RSk 3 3 3 3 | |
Mr. CHING Yu Lung IRIngE S 3 3 3 3 | |
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REXKE 3 3 3 3 | |
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Corporate Governance Report

EXRELRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance (Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across
the Board and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or financial management expertise. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6 to the Annual Report, which

demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
Independent Non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of

the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its

approval. The principal functions of the Board are:

®  to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company

and set the objectives of the management;

® to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment

proposals;

®  to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

®  to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,

risk management, financial reporting and compliance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on
a going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2024, and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2024, the members of the Board have selected
appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new and amended
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2024, have applied them consistently
with previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made

are prudent and reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2024, the management provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision D.|.2
of the CG Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 58 to

60.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, Mr. NG Chi
Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, Mr. HUI Man Wai, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey,
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHING Yu Lung and Mr. YU Chi Kwong have
participated in continuous professional development by engaging in business
activities beneficial to the Company in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered by professional bodies and
self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure

that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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EXRELRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuing Professional Development (Continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. During the year
ended 30th June 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has arranged to provide the Directors with briefing on the amendments to the

Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been
complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual

basis.

Director’s Nomination Policy
The Director's nomination policy of the Company was adopted by the Board
and became effective on Ist January 2019 and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from Board members, management,
and headhunters. The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates properly submitted
by shareholders of the Company through formal procedures set out in the
Company’s Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
director candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and

recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated by
shareholders of the Company are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director's qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion
to establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary based on the
composition, skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board rather than on

the individual candidate.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Nomination Process (Continued)

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of director candidates by the Nomination Committee to stand
for election at any general meeting. The Board will take such recommendations
under advisement and is responsible for designating the director candidates to
be elected at the annual general meeting of the Company and electing Directors

to fill Board vacancies.

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal information
in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to be appointed as a
Director and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for

election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
director candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as
set out below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for

directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall rank them by order of preference based on the needs of the

Company and reference check of each director candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the Company for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as set out
below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed

election of Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the company

secretary of the Company.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the

general meeting.
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EXRELRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring Directors including their attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of participation

and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine whether the

retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation
to the shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed re-election of

Directors at the general meeting.

Director Selection Criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications are at a
minimum to be required of a director candidate in recommending to the Board

potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
(a)  the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

(b)  proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

(c) qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

(d) the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company's success;

(e) the contribution on diversity of the Board and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board:

() an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required of a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary

to diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

(g) meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing Rules and
the composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the

Listing Rules from time to time (where applicable).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Selection Criteria (Continued)

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director
candidate, although the Nomination Committee may also consider such other
factors as it may deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the

shareholders of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Nomination Committee was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee consists of all Independent Non-executive
Directors and an Executive Director. The composition and attendance record of

the Nomination Committee are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
EERERME

EE2H)
EETREN(F)
BEXFRMESN  BERAEE AL

EREAIGER BT ARNRARARFBRR
REMNGZ EBEE  ERERXREE
FREATEI 2RIEFE -

REREE

AR
BEEEEN T —F=A=+ AR
R R B RER Y - REER
CTHEEBYFRATEFR —ARTES
MR - EAAR R LM T

Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESERE percentage
Attendants HES S BRE HER
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) — EELE(ZEESL/E) 2/2 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung [ES UL 22 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REKLE 22 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung IR & 202 100%

Role and Function HAEEBE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee would review
the Board’'s composition from time to time where Board diversity would be
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.
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EXRELRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2024 to review the structure, size and

composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee also reviewed and considered that the following
key features or mechanisms under the Company's governance structure are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the
Board:

i In assessing the suitability of Director candidates, the Nomination
Committee will review their profiles, including their qualification and time
commitment, having regard to the Board's composition, the Directors’ skill
matrix, the list of selection criteria approved by the Board, the director

nomination policy and the board diversity policy.

. Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed fee(s) for their roles as

members of the Board and Board Committee(s) as appropriate.

®  The Nomination Committee reviews annually each Director's time
commitment to the Company's business. Directors’ attendance records in
the year are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report contained in
this Annual Report.

. Independent non-executive Directors’ independence is assessed upon
appointment, annually, and at any other time where the circumstances

warrant reconsideration.

® The Company provides guidance to Directors on avoiding conflicts of
interest and on the circumstances under which appropriate action(s) shall

be taken by a Director in conflict.

. To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, all Directors are entitled to
seek advice from the Group's company secretary or the in-house legal
team as well as from independent professional advisers at the Company's

expense.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has updated a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in
July 2022 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of

diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

The Board has reviewed the current composition and is committed to achieve
gender diversity on the Board by maintaining an appropriate level of female
members on the Board and to provide the Company with a good balance and
diversity of skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of its business.
The Board plans to appoint at least one female Director by 31st December
2024. The Board will continue to review its composition from time to time

taking into consideration specific needs for the Group's business.

Independence

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive Directors shall be

of sufficient caliber and stature for their views to carry weight.
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EXRELRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Gender and age

The Company is committed to maintaining an environment of respect for people
regardless of their gender in all business dealings and achieving a workplace
environment free of harassment and discrimination on the basis of gender,
physical or mental state, race, nationality, religion, age or family status. The same
principle is applied to the selection of potential candidates for appointment to
the Board.

Skills and experience

The Board members should possess a balance of skills appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group, including the independent non-
executive Directors possessing professional accounting and other qualifications.
The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management backgrounds
that taken together provide the Group with considerable experience in a range
of activities including varied industries, education, government, investment and

the professions.

Measurable Objectives
[ The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition

under the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors should be not less
than three and one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive

experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Board Diversity

Policy had been met.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on Ist January 2019 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The

Audit Committee consists of all Independent Non-executive Directors. The
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composition and attendance record of the Audit Committee are as follows: AR EERLENT
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HEERRE percentage
Attendants HEE S BIRE HER
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) — IEEAXE(ZEESEE) 3/3 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung Bk 3/3 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REHEE 3/3 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting, risk management and internal control procedures
as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of

the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given

below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(a)  to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the

nature and scope of the audit;
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EEERRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)
(c)  to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:
(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and
(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any

matters the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of

management where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2024, the Audit Committee met three times, in
particular, to review and discuss the followings:

®  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

®  the appointment of external auditor;

° the establishment of internal control system; and

®  the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors

and all senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on 28th September 2023 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors and an Executive Director. The composition and attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
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Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESBRE percentage
Attendants HEH SR E HE=R
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEEEE(ZEEEFE) 4/4 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung TEEE S A& 4/4 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REXRFLE 4/4 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung IR A 4/4 100%

Role and Function AGRBE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive
Directors and senior management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their offices or appointment. It takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.
The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year ended 30th
June 2024 to review the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of

the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of employees (including the Directors and Senior
Management) of the Group are generally structured by reference to market
terms and individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group also
provides various other benefits to designated staff, including discretionary bonus,
social insurance or medical insurance, share option scheme, continuing education
and training programmes. The Group also launched key performance indicators
assessment scheme and annual bonus scheme to boost individual performance

and operational efficiency.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid

and payable by the Company for such services are as follows:
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HK$’000
FERT
Audit services for the Group RAEERME  EZRE 2,194
Non-audit services including: FEZRGEELE

— review of interim results —EBHFEEE 276
— taxation services for the Group — RAREBERMH 7 HIBRS 328

— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AEBEFEBELMIETIRF
annual results announcement 24
Total mE 2,822
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Composition

A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”) was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate
Governance Committee consists of all Independent Non-executive Directors.
The composition and attendance record of the Corporate Governance

Committee are as follows:
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Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESBRE percentage
Attendants HEE SR E HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEEEE(ZEEEFE) 2/2 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung RINBES & 212 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENRFLE 22 100%

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held
two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2024 to review the corporate
governance policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on

corporate governance to the employees of the Group.
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EXRELRE

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group
has formulated and adopted a risk management process which includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At
least on an annual basis, the management of the Company identifies risks that
would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses
and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be significant,

which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information
to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors. In addition, the Group has established internal
control protocols and control self-assessment process on major operations.

Assessment results are submitted to the Board for ongoing monitoring purpose.

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk associated

with its businesses and operations. The system comprises the following phases:

° Identification: identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that
could affect the achievement of objectives;

° Analysis and Assessment: analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

i Risk Response and Monitoring: consider the risk exposures, ensure
effective communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on an

ongoing basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the Group
to achieve objectives regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and

regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follows:

. Control environment: a set of standards, processes and structures that

provide the basis for carrying out internal control across the Group;

e Risk assessment: a dynamic and iterative process for identifying and
analysing risks to achieve the Group's objectives, forming a basis for

determining how risks should be managed;

. Control activities: actions established by policies and procedures to ensure
that management's directives to mitigate risks for the achievement of

objectives are carried out;

. Information and communication: internal and external communications
to provide the Group with the information needed to carry out the daily

controls; and

. Monitoring: ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether each

component of the internal control system is present and functioning.

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and
the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal
audit functions for the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation
of internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation

actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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EXRELRE

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability. The Company has formulated the Whistle
Blowing Policy in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. It
was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company, with the
authority and responsibility being delegated to the Audit Committee. Details
of the Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company are disclosed on the Company's

website https://www.nhh.com.hk.

External parties may raise concerns about the relevant matter against the

Company by using below channel:

Email: auditcommittee@nhh.com.hk

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving the highest standards of business conduct
and has zero tolerance for corruption and related malpractice. The Company
has formulated the Anti-Corruption Policy and it was approved and adopted by
the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the requirements of
the Stock Exchange. Details of the Anti-Corruption Policy of the Company are

disclosed on the Company's website https://www.nhh.com.hk.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho ("Mr. Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses
the necessary qualifications and experiences, and is capable of performing
the functions of a company secretary. Mr. Chan is the secretary of the Board
and various Board committees including Audit Committee, Remuneration

Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2024, Mr. Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.
Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders
may be put to the Board through the following channels to the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”):

by mail to the Company’s head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Centre, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 1663;

3. by fax at fax number +852 2694 0877; or

4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders.
Announcements are posted on the Company's website https://www.nhh.com.
hk. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also contains

additional information on the Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure
a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and

goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by
poll in all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to
shareholders together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The
Company has taken steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about
voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents
of the Company. The Board attends the Annual General Meetings to answer
shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on the website of the Stock

Exchange and are posted on the Company's website shortly after the meetings.
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EXRELRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
at the Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Centre, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) must include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate indicating his/
her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a Director without adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to
submit and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business

days prior to the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March
2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply
with the code provision F.I of the CG Code.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) was adopted by the

Board and became effective on |st January 2019.

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an appropriate
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company. The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the Company's
shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

The declaration and recommendation of dividends is subject to the decision of
the Board after considering the Company's ability to pay dividends, which will
depend upon, among other things:

®  the Group's financial results;

® the Group's cashflow, liquidity and capital requirements;

®  the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

®  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

® the Group's shareholders’ interests;

® the Group's current and future business operations, conditions, cycle and

strategies;

®  the general market conditions;

®  the shareholders’ and the investors' expectation and industry’'s norm;

® any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group's lenders;

®  statutory and regulatory restrictions;

. past dividend records; and

. any other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued) RE R (&)

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend and the form EEEU2ENBERAEREIRMNRE RIK
to pay, subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the N2 WEABTAERERARDEREAR
Bye-laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company must AAABERAB 2 ERBRE - XATE M
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company at ERIAREARE VAR REFAE
an annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount recommended by FUAEBABRRTUIE - BN E@BBRE
the Board. The Board may also consider declaring special dividends from time to EEMER ST - BRPEE IRER
time, in addition to the interim and/or final dividends. There is no assurance that BoN EEGMA AR ZE BE IR AR
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period. B o RARITEERBBEEMETEHREIR
MERFESRIBE -

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and its effectiveness AR B G RR AT R E#T AT AR SR &

from time to time. Any revisions to the Dividend Policy shall be considered and HR - REBRNEMEIHERES
approved by the Board. eEIRBIA -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group"), which are set out on pages 61 to

186, comprise:

®  the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2024;

®  the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

® the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

®  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

®  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

®  the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material

accounting policy information and other explanatory information.
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R3S

OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2024, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision for inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
AR 3 TS

FEEETEE @)

Key Audit Matter BRETEE
Provision for inventories FEREE

Refer to Notes 4(c) and 22 of the consolidated financial statements

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net value, being estimated
selling price less estimated selling costs. As at 30th June 2024, the Group's
balance of net inventories was HK$300,277,000.

The estimation of provision for inventories involves significant management
judgement, which is determined with reference to the price per latest sales
transaction, ageing analysis and the estimated net realisable value for obsolete

and/or slow-moving inventories.

We focused on the evaluation of management's assessment on the provision
for inventories because this assessment is subject to estimation uncertainty.
The inherent risk in relation to the assessment relates to the complexity of the
methods and subjectivity of significant assumption used, significant judgements
involved in selecting data and the carrying values of these inventories are

financially significant to the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Provision for inventories (Continued) 7 1 ()
In assessing the reasonableness of management's provision for inventories, we R EEEHFERBENEESGEY
B ITHRERF R

performed the following procedures:

We obtained an understanding on the management's internal control and
assessment process of estimating the provision allowance of obsolete and
slow-moving inventories, net realisable values including how management
gathered source of inventory data and adopted the assumption
for provision allowance. We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and

level of other inherent risk factors;

We evaluated the Group's inventory provision policy with reference to

the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

We assessed the reasonableness of methodology and assumptions
applied to estimate inventories provision by inquiring management
and other relevant employees and comparing against historical sales,
reviewing utilisation pattern and historical key inventory ratios (e.g.

inventory turnover days) and data;

We tested inventories movements to validate the accuracy of the
inventories ageing report, which was the key report used by management

to determine the provision for slow-moving inventories;

In relation to management's assessment of inventories' net realisable
values, we compared the selling prices used in the assessment to actual

selling prices subsequent to year end; and

We performed a recalculation of the inventory provision based on the
net realisabale value and ageing profile of the inventories as at 30th June
2024.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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R3S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
AR 3 TS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R3S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th September 2024

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED - ZHRE/THRERAT
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Consolidated Income Statement

FalaEk

For the year ended 30th June 2024

Bz —F-—pmFENA=+HIFFE

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ks FERT TET
Revenue from contracts with customers BEPEH 2 WES 5 1,276,350 [,177,827
Cost of sales SHE BN 8 (1,077,087) (1,030,123)
Gross profit il 199,263 147,704
Other income HAb A 6 6,651 6736
Other gains, net Hith iz —F &8 7 2,634 5,117
Distribution costs DA 8 (81,723) (80,576)
Reversal of/(provision for) loss allowance on B 5 R EERE
trade receivables () 3.1 500 (883)
Administrative expenses TR 8 (109,227) (112,335)
Operating profit/(loss) geERF,(E8) 18,098 (34,237)
Finance income B s 865 686
Finance costs BB E R (23,601) (17,309)
Finance costs, net WBER - F8 9 (22,736) (16,623)
Loss before income tax bR E A& 1B (4,638) (50,860)
Income tax expense MIESZ 10 (12,195) (79)
Loss for the year REFE (16,833) (50,939)
Attributable to: AT AT FEE -
Equity holders of the Company NAEIIRE (18,041) (52,007)
Non-controlling interests FEVE I 1,208 1,068
(16,833) (50,939)
Loss per share for loss attributable to KEERRRFEN
equity holders of the Company during BBz BREE
the year (expressed in HK cents per share) (AR ALET)
— Basic and diluted —ERREE 12 (4.89) (14.09)
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with AR S W R 7 B B B BT BT 5 — DFBCE o

the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FaattilER

For the year ended 30th June 2024

BE_E_WWFENA=FAIFE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT T
Loss for the year AFEE (16,833) (50,939)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hih2mEWKaE(EE) :
[tem that will not be reclassified subsequently RETEHRETHEE
to income statement: Wk oBEE -
Fair value gain/(loss) of financial asset at fair value RAREBEAEM
though other comprehensive income PHERENTEEE 2
(“FVOCI™) RABENE(EE) 340 (599)
Currency translation differences PE & =% — (1,583)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently BERETSBEE
to income statement: Wk oBEE -
Currency translation differences bE =5 — (52,299)
Currency translation differences released BE—HEWE AR
upon liquidation of a subsidiary FRIRIE K =50 — (1,789)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year AEHMEEREZE(EB) 340 (56,270)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AE2EWEEE (16,493) (107,209)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to: 2E(ER) WaBEEER
— Equity holders of the Company —RAEIRE (17,796) (106,526)
— Non-controlling interests — FEFEHIRE 1,303 (683)
(16,493) (107,209)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in LR & OF R 2K R SRS HT T 5 — 51 B

conjunction with the accompanying notes. H
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
GEBEEAER

As at 30th June 2024
REFZpgFEANA=1+H

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ifzs FTHERT FAET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE L&A I5 93,059 99,714
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 21,850 25,333
Investment properties WEME 17 158,233 155,426
Intangible assets mEAE 18 = —
Financial asset at fair value through BAREBETAEM
other comprehensive income 2HEWEI B EE 19 2,684 2,344
Financial asset at fair value through BAREBETA
profit and loss EHERNMBEE 20 5,959 —
Deferred income tax assets R IEE E 32 9,805 9,102
Deposits and prepayments for property, ME - BFERREEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs BERNRERZS 5,245 3,024
296,835 294,943
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 22 300,277 266,938
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R M R 23 243,833 217,246
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits H A fEUGR - TR 3K
kZEE 24 31,754 24,868
Income tax recoverable CEEEE 3,294 555
Restricted bank deposits SR B ERITIF R 26 36,657 36,082
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeFH 26 104,233 150,637
720,048 696,326
Total assets HEE 1,016,883 991,269
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to RARREMGERA R EE
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 29 36,920 36,920
Share premium A&7 5 (B 29 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hm#FE 30 7,007 6,762
Retained earnings RE R 30 390,734 405,201
497,127 511,349
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 22,170 25,155
Total equity ERBEH 519,297 536,504
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
GEEEAER

As at 30th June 2024

R-FEZFEANA=1H

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
= FHxT T T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFIBEEE 32 4,928 6,275
Lease liabilities HEB®E 16 1,344 4,154
Provision for reinstatement costs 1B1ERK AR = 23
6,272 10,452
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables B RN RN ENRIE 27 53,478 56,769
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMENR - 2 lET2
LIERE R 28 39,711 36,996
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 5,075 5,774
Borrowings £ 3 385,873 338922
Derivative financial instruments TESsMI A 25 736 135
Income tax payable e IR 6,441 5717
491,314 444313
Total liabilities HwWEE 497,586 454765
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 1,016,883 991,269

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to |86 were approved by the

Board of Directors on 27th September 2024 and were signed on its behalf.

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
At g FFEE

Director Director

EF EF

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REFTHRELT

bR & B E BB R EEEE M — 6160

=
FI=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FAESEER
For the year ended 30th June 2024
BEx —F - ESNA=FHIFFE

Non-
controling
interests Total
FRHER 1
HK§ 000 HK$1000
Thn T
At Ist July 2022 2 s 36920 62466 3119 9640 1,988 50 44459 33767 659,046
Comprehensive income 2ENE
(Loss)fprofit forthe year K5 (BB /& - - - - - - (52007 1,068 (50939)
Other comprehensive loss Af2EER
Currency translation differences EXZE - - - - - (52299) - (1583) (53882)
Fair value los of financil asset t VOCI -~ BAABE ARMAENE
HEBEEILLERER - - - - 1) - - (189) (5%9)
Currency transaton diferences released B E—-FIMBLAR
upon liquidation of & subsidiary BRENZR - - - - - (1789) - - (1,769)
Total comprehensive loss 2ERE - - - - ®1 (54,088) (52,007) (683) (107,209)
Transactions with owners BFEEZRE
20012002 finel dhidend pd $~%-/"F%E
~EkE - - - - - - (7384 - (73849)
Divdends paid to non-controling nerests SRR AR TRE - - - - - - - (1949) (7349)
Total transactions with owners RFEEI RS - - - - - - (7384) (7949) (153%3)
At 30th June 2023 RZTZZF7A=1A 36,920 62,466 (3.119) 9640 1557 (1316) 405,201 5% 536504
ANNUAL REPORT FERE 23 /24




~— Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERDEER
For the year ended 30th June 2024
BE—E_FENA=FHIFE

Autributable to the Company's equity holders

ARRREREB

Other reserves

SR

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
other
comprehensive
income reserve
BOA Exchange
fEETA fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Revaluation Afp2E reserve Retained controlling

capital premium reserve reserve  WEHEE Ed earnings interests Total
R R&iEE B EftRR EEGE RaaE REEH  EEHER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T Thn T T T T TEn T

At lst uly 2023 RZZZZFtA-A 36920 62,466 (3119 9,640 1,557 (1.318) 405,201 15,155 536,504
Comprehensive income 2EhE
(Loss)lproft for the year TE(BR) /5T - - - - - - (18,041) 1,208 (16833)
Other comprehensive income Aft2ERE
Fair value loss of financial asset at VOCI - AR EEF AL 2ENE
AR A RBERR - - - - 45 - - % 0

Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2akE/ (B8 - - - - 15 - (18,041) 1,303 (16,493)
Transactions with owners LAY
Transactions with non-controling nterests  S3EERER 2 X5

(Note 33) (Hi3k38) = = = = = = 3574 (3574 =
Dividends paid to non-controling nerests - FIFEIEHIER T RS - - - - - - - (714) (714
Total transactions with owners RfiREzR 588 - - - - - - 3574 (4268) (714)
At 30th June 2024 WZZZRERAZTA 36920 62,466 (3.119) 9,640 1,802 (1.316) 390,734 0,170 519,297

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in ARG e am B B 3R B B P BT 5 — OF B9

conjunction with the accompanying notes. iE o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERE

For the year ended 30th June 2024

HE—F-WFENA=1THILFE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Mainland China income tax paid

Interest received

2024 2023
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FEx FAT
REEBZREN
REEB(ER) EE
ZH& 33(a) (29,388) 93,977
EHMEBEBNEH (5,885) (5,698)
B B i pTIS (10,375) (4,787)
AR 290 27

Net cash (used in)/generated from

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of financial asset at fair value
through profit and loss
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Prepayments for property,

plant and equipment

REEB(ER) /EEZ
FHEE (45,358) 83,519

BREXEB RSN

BERAABEAAEH

BanEBEE (7,357) —
BEWE  WEIRE (9,050) (6,966)
HEWE - BB REH

Fri3 K 33(b) 913 190
M - BERFREERAR

(2,221) (2,805)

Net cash used in investing activities

REFXBHERFRE (17,715) (9,581)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GABERER

For the year ended 30th June 2024
HE—F-WFENA=1THIFFE

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THxT FHET
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBREN
Proceeds from loans HIBE K 1,116,683 960,559
Repayment of loans EEEX (1,079,395) (893,464)
Increase/(decrease) in trust receipt loans IR E FE I, CR) 9,663 (120,379)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ST FIEIE SIS IR B (714) (7,949)
Dividends paid SAARE = (7,384)
Interest paid ERFE (23,601) (17,185)
Repayment of principal elements of BREHEEAEBERESES
lease liabilities (5,967) (5,268)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEXEBEE
financing activities (A2 FRe 16,669 (91,070)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERRESEFH D (46,404) (17,132)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FUIzRERRSEE
the year 26 150,637 178,926
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEE R BB — (11,157)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~FARZE & RIB & EHHE 26 104,233 150,637
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction LR & IR & 7R 2 5% 8 SRR M B 5T — 01 B2
with the accompanying notes. & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins

and engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 1|, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
27th September 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(i)  Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure requirements
of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

(i)  Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities (including financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL") and derivative financial instruments)
and investment property which are measured at fair value or

revalued amount.
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Hamilton HM I |, Bermuda °

ARBZBMECRBBBARXSM
BRARZERLET -

BRIEE BINTIBA - NERE B IRE
TIAATTHR « NerE M BIHRED
RZE-_WFAA-+LHAWKES
BHLAE -

mBLE X

(i) BFEBHBHREEARE
BN ARG B E
AEBAHPBRRERES
EERSRE R ([ BB R
SR ) REBRBIEG(FE
6N BINBTERE -

(i) EEHLE

BB IRERERIEBE £ A
ERE RITENEMEEME
& (BERANEBETAH
feml =N BEEE  RA
REEFAZHEENUBE
EMTESRIA)VEBE
RN R EEIIBRNIRENME
RIRASEBEINABZOSH
BETIAMEE -

ANNUAL REPORT FE R 23/24

69



70

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A5 ERaR b aE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REFTHRELT

Historical cost convention (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2 WREESE)

(i)

BERAE (&)

RETEBBY RS LR
MBHREAFBEERETEAS
AR - EEE AR EAAR
SE G BREEL HE -
PENSYEIERL Rk 3k -
RERMGEEA M BREM
SEEZMNSENHE4E -

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards, amendments

to standards and interpretation for the first time for the annual

perioding beginning on Ist July 2023:

Amendments to HKAS | and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BTG ERIE | 5 NB B Mo E %,

EREAE 2R AERT AR

Amendments to HKAS 8
BEGFTEAE 85 ZIEFT A

Amendments to HKAS 2
BB GETERIE 1257 2BF] A

Amendments to HKAS 12
EBGFTERE 125 28F] A

HKFRS 17
BREMBMEERE 175

Amendments to HKFRS 17

BEAMBHREERE 7R ZEFTA

Amendments to HKFRS 17
BEUERELANE 1757 ASF] R

(i) K 5 B BT BR A0 19 F7 2E B A K&
ARIEETER)
AEEEREBZZE_=FtH
—HRERHFRAEEXERMU
T 2R B AN A2 A 9IS ET

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BRTBR KR

Definition of Accounting Estimate

BRHERTZEE

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from
a single transaction

HE-RZELNEENABEBRNELHRE

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

BB NE -5 - RERR

Insurance Contracts

REREH

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9
— Comparative Information

BREMBERBYBHMEERNE 7R REBEBY B HRE LR E 95
— LA

Insurance Contracts

(=)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2
(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(iv)

(Continued)

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly

affect the current or future periods.

New and amended standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

The following new standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning on

I'st July 2023 and have not been early adopted:

Amendments to HKAS |
BB ERSE | 2B R
Amendments to HKAS |
BAGEERSE | 2B R

Amendments to HKAS 16

BENRBEIFERBE D

MR ZIERBAE

FEMIBHmRMEE

mREE#)

(iii)

(iv)

K 5% [B] T £R A 19 #7 2E R LA R
AIEATER (&

BRI L SCRT DI 9 37 2 R RN 2
AlMERTE BT HRERL
SR EETATE  BEHT
SUHBRRAKYRELEAX

o

&
I

i R R A B9 F AT LR AE 15
TR
ATREAMELIFNEBEE
“EC=FtA-HENMK
FREAEREFER R HER R
(ERT - AREWEIT PR -

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current!

Non-current liabilities with Covenants'

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback'

BREGHERE 165K 2ERTA EREL s HERE"
Revised to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower

of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause'

FERER SR (EERT)
D!
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements'
EEMBHREEMNE 7R REEGEL HEBRERHRE
RTRZEFTAR

MHERERNEI - ERABBEHBRERGERZERERZ

Amendments to HKAS 2| Lack of Exchangeability?
EBGFTERE 2 R 2ABE] AR TR= Al XAl 2
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of

Financial Instruments*
BEUWBERELENFIORLREAVBHRE SRIASERTE B
ERIE 7R ZIBFTA

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements?

BRI HREERE 18557 MBRER 22D R

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures®

BRI HREERE 195

TEARARTEEZHMBAR - WE:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

BEMBHREENE 0RRBFBEHER KREFEHEBENRREGLECEZMNEELEITES

F 285 ZIBRI A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A5 ERaR b aE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iv)

New and amended standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

M Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2024

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2025
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2026
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2027
® To be determined

The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of the new
standards and amendments to standards on its results of operations
and financial position. However, none of the above new standards
and amendments to standards is expected to have a significant effect

on the financial statements.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in order to manage those risks. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative

purposes.

REFTHRRT

2 WREESE)

(iv)

J5f 7 E TR AN B9 #7 AT U R 4815
FTER(4E)
o BT _WHF—A—HEH

FIRAPRE A
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3.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"),
Renminbi (“RMB™) and US dollar ("USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to USD and RMB.

Management has a policy to require group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against functional currency.
[t mainly includes managing the exposures arise from sales and
purchases made by the relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange exposures and
has entered into certain foreign exchange contracts to manage
foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2024, the Group had
certain outstanding forward foreign currency contracts to
purchase USD (2023: purchase USD), details of which have
been disclosed in Note 25. Certain of the Group's receivables,
restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, trade
and bills payables and borrowings were also denominated in
foreign currencies, details of which have been disclosed in
Notes 23, 26, 27 and 31. Since the HK$ is pegged to USD,
management are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk

exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

(b)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2024, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
5% against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax loss for the year would have been HK$ 1,473,000 (2023:
HK$1,440,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of foreign currency-

denominated non-derivative financial assets and liabilities.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash
at bank. The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carry at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair

value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether borrowings bearing fixed
or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with

reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.

REFTHRRT

3

MHEREEE)

3.1

BBEBREEE)
(a) SMEEE(E)

()

R-ZE-—mEXA=+
B WMETHARKER
B/ FEEHZHEAM
EEMAZRFRFELE
AAFEREBEKS
B 38 H0#9 1,473,000
BT == F
1,440,000/87T) * E22
A 3% & LA SNEE 51 (E H IF
TEFBEEREGREM
EEME R e BiE

B2 HERAL EEF
FEE

e A 7 5 B 3 9 B K A
BEE AHKERTHE
REEBER  AEE
HRAREER ST &
KHETETISFIER
BT E - AR
REFEEDAREE
R - B E
SemEREREEE
HALREAB - TR
Bl 52 I % 4T 880 {2 3R
EAREEYAALEE
FIERR -

AEBEE T EREHN R

BB LORTE E A
B E 3% B F & 2 K 8
BEFGEITIEER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

(©

As at 30th June 2024, if the interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have been HK$ 187,000 (2023:
HK$670,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest income on cash at bank net off with higher/lower

interest expense on borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to
its plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order

to determine its pricing strategies.
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents and security investments with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers such
as trade receivables and other counterparties. The carrying
amounts of these balances in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to its financial assets.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

— Trade receivables: and

- Other financial assets at amortised cost.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and the restricted
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution
and management does not expect any losses arising from non-

performance by these counterparties.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REFTHRELT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and

shared credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Impairment losses
on trade receivables are presented as impairment losses
within other operating expenses. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against

the same line item.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of customers and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. With
the increased risk from the volatility of economic climate
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group has
maintained a defined credit policy with tightened risk
profile and applied prudent policies to manage its credit
risk with its trade receivables that includes an ageing
analysis of trade receivables is prepared on a regular
basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk

associated with receivables.
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FE I IEMRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HEEEEEE)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)
(1) Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 30th June 2024

(d) 1EEmEEE
() ESERKE)

EZEELE K-

and 30th June 2023 was determined as follows for trade TE-MFENA=+
receivables by due date: Ak _=F
A=tH®EZRE
WHREBEREEET
T
Gross Expected credit
carrying loss rate Loss
amount EHEE allowance
REAE BiE=x BIERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHER
As at 30th June 2024 R-Z-OF
AA=tH
Current BRE 135,295 0.0%-0.3% 154
Within 30 days 308 40,692 0.0%-0.7% 78
31 to 60 days 31-60H 13,880 0.0%-3.5% 89
61 to 90 days 61-90H 4,229 0.0%-40.6% 66
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 9,117 0.0%-73.5% 106
Over 180 days HBi® 180 H 3,695 100.0% 3,695
206,908 4,188
Expected credit
Gross carrying loss rate Loss
amount BHEEE allowance
FRmARE [SEES EE R
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
As at 30th June 2023 R-B==
<A=tH
Current EERC] 141,967 0.0%-0.6% 45
Within 30 days 308 A 21,877 0.0%-1.3% 47
31 to 60 days 31-60H 10,245 0.0%-5.6% 66
61 to 90 days 61-90H 1,584 0.0%-18.4% 20
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 4218 0.0%-28.6% 330
Over 180 days B’ 180 H 4,181 100.0% 4,181
184,072 4,689
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at
30th June 2024 and 2023 reconcile to the opening loss

allowances as follows:

3
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() EBZERZK(E)

RZE_MWFE R
ET-_=FXA=*+
BME S ERRF
RE 1B 1)
EEEENE R
T

Loss allowance for
trade receivables
EZRUAEERE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET

Opening loss allowance as at |st July REA—BH

FYIBEREE (4,689) (5,305)
Reversal of/(provision for) loss allowance & 5 & &5 18
on trade receivables o (BE) 500 (883)
Currency translation differences M H =58 — 438
Receivable written off HREH I I 1,061
Closing loss allowance as at 30th June RS A=+ HK
FREBERE (4,188) (4,689)
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented B 5 e W OB E B
as net impairment losses within operating profit/(loss). BEINA/KERN
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off S (B1E) AR R E
are credited against the same line item. F1E 55 - Higlk
Bl 55 Bl 2 i 88 B9 5K
HRRFR—HEBAA
B o
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

(e

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

(1) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalent, bills and other receivables. Management
considered that these have a low credit risk and did
not make any provision for these other financial assets
at amortised cost based on the historical settlement
pattern of these other financial assets and the forward-

looking recoverability analysis of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2024, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$359,993,000 (2023: HK$329,262,000).
Credit risk in connection with such guarantees is considered

to be minimal.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping

committed credit lines available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
settlement of borrowings, payment for trade and other
payables, and payment for operating expenses. The Group
mainly finances its working capital requirements through a

combination of internal resources and borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash balances and adequate credit facilities to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of
the Group. The Group also maintains a prudent level of
liquid assets and committed banking facilities to ensure the
availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected
and material cash requirements in the ordinary course of
business. As at 30th June 2024, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$622,903,000
(2023: HK$626,402,000) of which HK$359,993,000 (2023:
HK$329,262,000) was being utilised by the Group.
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flow, including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the
maturity date of borrowings with a repayable on demand
clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in the
loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses. Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such borrowings will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements. During the year ended 30th June
2024, total borrowing with repayment and demand clauses is
HK$ 164,519,000 (2023: HK$143,449,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI EE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HREKREER@®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREAZEE)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) TWEEZEE(E)
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —ZWERN WELFR k]
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx THERT FTHET
At 30th June 2024 RZZEZMFRA=+AH
Trade and bills payables B SB[ RENFE 53,478 = = 53,478
Other payables HiENRRERE R
and accruals 27,966 — — 27,966
Lease liabilities HERAE 5,282 1,378 — 6,660
Borrowings BE 388,585 = = 388,585
Total PGk 475311 1,378 = 476,689
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FHN —EWMFA WMERFA Gk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHET FET
At 30th June 2023 RZZE-=FA=+H
Trade and bills payables B SRR KENZE 56,769 — — 56,769
Other payables Hi e R RTERE R
and accruals 24,535 — — 24,535
Lease liabilities HEEE 6,077 2,604 1,655 10,336
Borrowings = 340,475 — — 340,475
Total BE 427,856 2,604 ,655 432,115
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e IS IRRMI R
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HRRKREER®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREAZEE)
(e)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) HEEZEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial TRETASE®ENERE
liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant EELENTTESRE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from & HREBNIHAE
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Bl BEBEHEEBEE
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual Az &R 3 EH & F ek
undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates prevailing at HMEETHN ERA
the balance sheet date. BENSHEARKUR
WaRBEER LRIE
REEBEXRBERD

BB -

Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—£rn -EMFRA WEIER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TER TER TER TER

At 30th June 2024

Currency forward

contract
— Outflow — 4N 73,611 112,353 = 185,964
— Inflow —mA (73,625) (112,375) = (186,000)
Total PGk (14) (22) = (36)
At 30th June 2023 R-ZE-=%XA=+H
Currency forward BHRIEH

contract
— Outflow — 4N 46,488 30,992 — 77,480
— Inflow — A (46,500) (31,000) — (77,500)
Total Gk (12) (8) — (20)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new

borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance

sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 30th
June 2024 and 2023:

3
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B B b B IR (4F)

32 EBXREBREE
AEEBNESLERBR =R
EAEEEEESE  UABK
RiEHOFRMAEMERSS
ARBERZ - FSHEERED
BEREBIUBIERE KA o

AEBEEEEARRE  TRE
RERBENEFLRE - B
THBRABRELRERE A%
B R a2 B T T RR AR
B8 BITHRIESHN

AEENABELXEREE
7R o b bE R IR IR A F BER A
BERGHE - BBFEREE
ERERERASFR - HE
reERI(NEaEERE
RGBT FEE

RIB-WMER-_TE-=FX
A=+B AEEZAFELE

LU
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Total borrowings (Note 31) wEE (M3 385,873 338,922
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) & : & RN E 5 (F17E26) (104,233) (150,637)
Net debt EH5% 8 281,640 188,285
Total equity HarEm 519,297 536,504
Total capital 1B R A 800,937 724,789
Gearing ratio BERBELE 35% 26%
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3

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

B ¥ SRR EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratio increased from 26% to 35% as a result of increase
in borrowings and decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the
year ended 30th June 2024.

Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the
balance sheet at fair value are required to disclose the fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1)

®  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

®* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivable and
deposits and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial
liabilities including borrowings, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in level I.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market data,

the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level

2 fair value hierarchy classifications.
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3

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 30th June 2024, the Group's financial asset at FVPL, financial
asset at FVOCI and derivative financial instruments are categorised
as level 3 financial instruments. Disclosures relating to investment
properties that are measured at fair value are set out in Note |7,
As at 30th June 2024, the fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. Fair value of unlisted investment was determined by
the Directors to be close to the net assets value of such company
based on its unaudited financial statements for the year. Fair value
of the keyman insurance contract is determined based on the
cash surrender value in accordance with the keyman insurance
contract which is an unobservable input. Directors estimate the fair
value based on the cash surrender value projection in the keyman
insurance contract. Specific valuation technique used to value the
derivative financial instruments includes using forward exchange rates
at the balance sheet date to discount back to the present value. The
key unobservable data includes the interbank forward exchange rate
and the volatility of forward exchange rate. Changes in subjective

input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.

REFTHRRT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMFRRM T
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIBERREER®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 ALEEGE(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for TRETEBE_ZT_MFAH
the year ended 30th June 2024. =tHLEFESEIBE2RMIA
e -
Financial
Financial asset at
asset at FVOCI Derivative
FVPL BAREE financial
RAREE s AEAM instruments
FAEH ZHEHKEL 7TE
B MBEE S@MIA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHET FHER
Opening balance UEEE=AS — 2,344 (135)
Additions i 7,357 — —
Net settlements FEEE = = 611)
Gains recognised in THEMEE K
other comprehensive loss R — 340 —
(Losses)/gains recognised in EEERRN(EE)
profit and loss W as (1,398) = 10
Closing balance LIPS Y73 5,959 2,684 (736)

ANNUAL REPORT FE#H% 23/24 89



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=1
=E

B ¥ SRR EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERREE@)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 ALEEGE(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for LTRREBEEZE_ZE_=FXA
the year ended 30th June 2023. —THELEFERNEIESRT
ANEBE -
Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
BRAREBE financial
T AEAL instruments
e e g
MBEE TRIA
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
Opening balance BR A R 2,943 (296)
Net settlements FEEE — (435)
Losses recognised in other EHEAMEE WS
comprehensive loss HRREE (599) —
Gains recognised in profit and loss LB 2 R A W 25 — 596
Closing balance HR sk 2,344 (135)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34 BHEUBEENERE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

master netting or similar agreements.

REFTHRRT

As at 30th June 2024 and 2023, there were no financial assets or

financial liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable

RZEBEZNERZTZ=FX
A=+H UEEAHBEEE
KB EEEE - ATRITAE
B2 BB B ERRR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the

related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, leasehold land and land use rights and intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These

calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's financial
position and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the

consolidated income statement.

4
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined
at each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate
on the basis of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current
leases based on the capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This
methodology is based upon estimates of future results and a set of
assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and future
economic conditions. Details of the judgement and assumptions

have been disclosed in Note |7.

Estimate of provision for inventory

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories are
recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

REFTHRRT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZFE&SzWHER

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7 ERE #
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT THET
Revenue from contracts with customers BERPAHZHA
Sales of goods HEE® 1,276,350 1,177,827
The Group derived revenue from the sales of goods at a point in time. AEERE -—KHEMEEREHEE
EmEA o
Liabilities related to contract with customers BREFEHZER
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with AEECHERUATERERPEOZ
customers: BfE -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contract liabilities, included in other EIAEMEMNFETERER
payables and accruals ZERNEE 7,753 9,005
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the TRETARERRAREES O
current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BEERNBESHE -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Revenue recognised that was included AFYENEEER
in the contract liabilities balance at < BRI ES
the beginning of the year 9,005 9,510
by dE— A A | x
There are no unsatisfied nor partially unsatisfied performance obligation H YA — kO LR RE IR
— (b gt 2 = q= o
that has an original expected duration of one year or more. AR FERR S EE D R e B KR
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined
the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM
that are used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM
considers the business from the operations nature and the type of
products perspective, including the trading of plastic materials (“Trading”),
manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and compounded plastic
resins ("“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic products
(“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities
(“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties.
Information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of revenue and operating profit including corporate expenses,
which is in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REFTHRELT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable
segments for the year ended 30th June 2024 is as follows:

FEMEHmRMEE
EFEHZHER
DEBE R ()

BE_ZT_MFA=TBELFE
REAEFLERREEZIZIIR

HEDEERNT -
Segment
iR
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EGE IRER Hits rEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THERT THET TET THET THERT
Turnover e
— Gross revenue —DHRIEE 831,542 369,295 136,969 — 1,337,806
— Inter-segment revenue — D EEHEE (59,600) (1,856) — — (61,456)
Revenue from external SNERR P U 2
customers 771,942 367,439 136,969 — 1,276,350
Operating (loss)/profit e (B18),/ & H (19,639) 26,696 12,322 (1,281) 18,098
Finance income B 75 Wz 98 747 20 = 865
Finance costs B ER (20,187) (1,746) (1,441) (227)  (23,601)
(Loss)/profit before income tax K Fi AT (E518) /% F (39,728) 25,697 10,901 (1,508) (4,638)
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SARBRRNE
5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 FTESHZWHER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 EBEF (47
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_Z_NFXXA=THILFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2024 is as follows: (Continued) REGERELEREE 225
ENERERIT (&)
Segment
2 &8
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EGE IRZER Hitt XK@
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FExT FEx FER FER
Other information: Hih&EH
Capital expenditures BERFE 650 8,616 4,137 7 13,410
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment R E 459 8,344 5,338 323 14,464
Depreciation of right-of-use TRREERE
assets 313 4,440 982 206 5,941
(Reversal of)/provision for FEREEERER)
impairment of inventories, BHE—FE
net (2,096) (135) 5,692 — 3,461
Provision for/(reversal of) B RKER
loss allowance B (BE)
on trade receivables 114 (67) (547) — (500)
Impairment for property, M - BERZERE
plant and equipments — — 894 — 894
Fair value gains on derivative ~ $TA S B T A
financial instruments NABEKS (10) == = = (10)
Fair value loss on financial asset 2 AR EEFTAE B
through profit and loss TEEE’\JE?W%%E
PAVIMIEEES — — — 1,398 1,398
Fair value losses/(gains) BEWERAEE
on investment properties &8, () 261 (1,228) — (1,840) 2,807
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable RZZEZWHFASAA=+HERESE
segments as at 30th June 2024 is as follows: BRERREZAIZIMEDEE
B
Segment
2 &
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
BZ EEE IEBER Ht REE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FEx  FEx  FERT  FER
Segment assets DEEE 411,697 325612 127,458 152,116 1,016,883
Segment liabilities pal=i =Nt (56,118)  (38,657)  (12,834)  (4,104) (111,713)
Segment borrowings HEEE (334,046)  (30,414) (16,952) (4,461) (385,873)
(390,164)  (69,071) (29,786) (8,565) (497,586)
96  NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED + BREFTHERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE SRR MR
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 EEG#H WK
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 EBEF (47
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HEZ-=-"F"A=-1THLFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2023 is as follows: RELERELEARARE 2R
EDHERMT -
Segment
DH
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH IRZEH Hfl REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THET THET THET THET TR
Turnover =
— Gross revenue —DEPBHE 799702 293821 138,544 — 1232067
— Inter-segment revenue — D EPEIHE (52,454) (1,774) (12) — (54,240)
Revenue from external SMER % P I a
customers 747,248 292,047 138,532 — 1,177,827
Operating (loss)/profit K (B18) s F (57,033) 15,640 8,427 (1.271)  (34237)
Finance income B 75 W 5k 57 587 42 — 686
Finance costs MBER (13,728) (1,227) (1,934) (420)  (17,309)
(Loss)/profit before income tax K Fi AT (E548 ), % FI (70,704) 15,000 6,535 (1,691)  (50,860)
Other information: Hip &R} -
Capital expenditures (- FNGiFa 92 8,176 3,893 38 12,199
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment R E 615 9,020 5,730 475 15,840
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE
assets 312 4,677 982 206 6,177
Provision for/(reversal of) FEREERRE,
impairment of inventories, net ~ (#[8]) — %78 9,221 (305) (1,436) — 7,480
(Reversal of)/provision for Z W RER
loss allowance (BE),/ B
on trade receivables (158) 921 120 — 883
Fair value gains on derivative MTEERIA
financial instruments NABERS (596) — — — (596)
Fair value losses/(gains) "EYERAEER
on investment properties BE (W) 924 (1,793) — (1,570) (2,439)
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEFEFEHAZWHER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o EE R (&)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable RZEZ=FNA=+tAHREHSGE
segments as at 30th June 2023 is as follows: ERERKEZ 2 MEDBE
B
Segment
D
Engineering

Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group

B 5 EGE IiREH Hih A&EE

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000

FHET  FTER FET FET  FTER

Segment assets DEPEE 394799 320484 135539 140,447 991269
Segment liabilities DEEE (63,610)  (32453)  (16000)  (3,780) (I15843)
Segment borrowings AEEE (293,684)  (23,748) (21,490) —  (338922)
(357,294)  (56,201)  (37,490)  (3,780) (454,765)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external
customers from Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2024 is
approximately HK$34 1,160,000 (2023: HK$363,318,000), and the total of
its revenue from external customers from other locations (mainly Mainland
China) is approximately HK$935,190,000 (2023: HK$814,509,000).

At 30th June 2024, the total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately
HK$ 174,869,000 (2023: HK$173,281,000), and the total of these non-
current assets located in other locations (mainly Mainland China) is
approximately HK$103,518,000 (2023: HK$110,216,000).

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REFTHRELT

REBUESAEW HBE-T
“MENAZTBELEEEXRERS
ZONER B P U a4 A 341,160,000
B Jt(Z T = = 4 363,318,000
) MARBEMMEBE(EFER
FEAM) ZHIBEFPREN A
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814,509,000/87T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has transferred
control over products to the customer, the customer has accepted the
products, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products, the amount of sales can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.
Revenue from sales is based on the price specified in the sales contracts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate the likelihood and provide
for sales return for the goods sold at the time of sale. A receivable is
recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is

required before the payment is due.

OTHER INCOME

5

FEMIBHmRMEE

BEFEHZWER

D EBE R (&)

KR BB
EREEREETEGERITHE
BREEEF BREMER - HE
AEFERFPEMER 2 RABTER
- HESEEPTELEREKNR
EEFIERA R AR BT IR
R WEWARBEESNFTE
W E - RIEERERARBERE
HEEER T REAEERYNE
REELEE - BRERS NS
QSRR BEEAZKRIRES
miEl - AESRMBEEHNAE
BNZAPI B A o

HAA

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Rental income WA 6,641 6,719
Sundry income Hiw g A 10 |7
6,651 6,736

Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income
amounted to approximately HK$ 1,778,000 (2023: HK$1,098,000).

AELEHSBANKEME M
XA H41,7780008 T (==
Z =4 : 1,098,0007T) °
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Httlzm—FE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Fair value gains on investment KEMEN R ABERT
properties (Note 17) (PfEE17) 2,807 2,439
Fair value loss on financial asset through BEARBETAEBERD
profit and loss FHEEAABEEL (1,398) —
Fair value gains/(losses) on derivative fTEeMmI A AABEKE
financial instruments (#B8X)
~ Realised —2ER 553 460
— Unrealised —KRER (543) 136
Government grant (Note (i) T8 B (B3 (1)) 1,595 [,144
Net exchange losses SNERE (380) (4,124)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary BE—HENB AT
(Note (ii)) (BREE (i) — 5,062
2,634 5117
Notes: BEE
(i) During the year ended 30th June 2024, pursuant to Mainland China local () HREZZZ-_NEFA=tHIF
government policies, the Group received government grant amounted B IREBR B A E BT ECR
to RMB1,467,000 (2023:RMB1,052,000), equivalent to approximately REEF N E T B A ME 2 4
HK$ 1,595,000 (2023:HK$1,144,000), from Mainland China local government G B i B H BUT S R &
authorities to support the operations in certain Mainland China regions with # 1,467,000 A K #(2023:1,052,000
no special conditions attached. AR (% B 41,595000% 7T
(2023:1,144,0003& 7T ) ) I 48 Ff 75 £F
] {4 2 38 & WU 4 BY A SR HLAE
& o
(i) In May 2023, the Pudong New Area People's Court of Shanghai has declared (i) R=F==FRA LBTHRH
bankruptcy of a subsidiary of the Company. The Group recognised a gain on BARZRESEARAN—HF
the liquidation of a subsidiary including a dissolution gain of HK$3,273,000 RARE - AEREERER
and release of currency translation difference of HK$1,789,000. B B8~ A B W as - B AR B R

3,273,000 8 T R EH — R B A A
B 7 B DEE 34 22 %8 1,789,000 78 7T °

100 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ HBE{THRAT
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

8 BMEETZHAX

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Cost of inventories sold excluding PEFERA(TREEEKRAR)
manufacturing costs 984,384 941,608
Auditor's remuneration ZERT 2
— Audit services — ZERH 2,194 2,155
~ Non-audit services — FRBURF 628 628
Depreciation of property, plant M BERRENE
and equipment (Note 15) (PfFE15) 14,464 15,840
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note |6) EREEENTE (M 16) 5,941 6,177
Provision for impairment of inventories, net FEREEERE —F5E 3,461 7,480
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BELRBZ
plant and equipment & (566) (7)
Employee benefit expenses, including EBERMNZH(BREEEHE)
Directors’ emoluments (Note (i) and note 13)  (MI&E (i) B 5E 13) 134,934 136,155
Operating lease rentals in respect of BFZEEHERS
buildings (Note |6) (P 16) 7,276 7,031
Repairs and maintenance expenses HERRERAX 5,965 4,962
Transportation and packaging expenses B RBEMAY 26,874 22,972
Travelling and office expenses EREPFAEREL 7,435 7,072
Utility expenses IKEMRZ 17,205 14,960
Other expenses Hin & A 57,842 56,001
Total cost of sales, distribution costs HEBA « DA R
and administrative expenses TR B 1,268,037 1,223,034
Representing: (A
Cost of sales HERA 1,077,087 1,030,123
Distribution costs 7 AR 81,723 80,576
Administrative expenses T 109,227 112,335
1,268,037 1,223,034
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

, ral ==
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 8 RMEEDZHXZM)
Note: BT
During the year ended 30th June 2023, the Hong Kong Special Administrative REBEZE_ZT_=FA=THILEFE -
Region Government has launched the “Employment Support Scheme” (ESS) BRRRIITER R BT HE R 2 58
providing wage subsidies to eligible subsidiaries of the Group. Government grants RETEHETAEE A EBHEBL
amounted to HK$ 1,933,000 are deducted in the employee benefit expenses. There A) o BT A8 B ££ 1,933,000 7% 7T A R 1R
are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to the grants. BEBAIZ L - &I BIM S H R

ERIGIT A A EIR -

9 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 HBWRmMEH
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Finance income: B AU 25 -
— Interest income from bank deposits — IRITE A BWA 865 686
- 086
Finance costs: MBER :
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note |6) —HEABZME (M 16) (328) (457)
— Interest on borrowings —fBEZHNE (23,273) (16,728)
— Net exchange losses on financing activities — BB R 2 INEE BT — (124)
,,,,,,,,,,,, (23.601)  (17399)
Finance costs, net M ER—FE (22,736) (16,623)
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SR IR
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 BLEH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2023: BEENEGHR BB FE N ERY
[6.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the HHERMERS 2 ABR(ZE
Group's subsidiaries established and operate in Mainland China have CEF - BEAZTARMAE)ERE
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the e FEAMBEDRELREE
rate of 25% (2023: 25%), except that certain subsidiaries are subject to RAEBEAK Y REEZWEB A
preferential tax rates ranging from 5% to 15% (2023: 5% to 15%) and AIZAFEMARERRTAMNE R
other preferential tax treatments. Two subsidiaries in Dongguan and AZZTRH(ZEZ=F:\BHZ
Xiamen which were certified as High and New Technology Enterprises and _‘f’fﬁ)sz‘ﬁ‘f’g CBEXNTRE

are entitled to a concessionary tax rate of 15% for three consecutive years ’\Zﬂ NZTHR(ZEZ=%F:
from 2021 to 2024 and 2022 to 2024 respectively. These subsidiaries Z£IE 37 T H)MEERE
are entitled to re-apply for the preferential tax treatment when the &ﬁf’@@ﬁﬁ%%m%ﬁb Bt /&8 2 &1 A
preferential tax period expires. Hho REEMAUNREREMZ
MBARERBRSHMMREEYL
’\E‘JT¥*”**¢ 1t S
M- —FE_FT-_NFEE=

¢§ PZTREZEEBRE - KB
RAAIRNEERGMTERBERE
SIRE BB LB o

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement Felmk e MBESIHR

represents:

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET THETT

Current income tax: REFFHIE -

Hong Kong profits tax BAENEH 335 63
Mainland China corporate income tax B A b 1 SE PTG AR 14,144 3,307
Over-provision in prior years LEERERE (234) (3,139)
14,245 231
Deferred income tax (Note 32) RIER IR (M5 32) (2,050) (152)
12,195 79
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continved) 10 BIEAXH &)
The taxation on the Group's loss before income tax differs from the NEEBABRTAEE 2 BiEER
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate ERRABAANGH 2R EmMAEZ
as follows: B ZEOT

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET

Loss before income tax PR AT ES 1B (4,638) (50,860)

Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) &K 165% (T =4 :

16.5%) 5T 8 2 Fi18 (765) (8,392)

Effect of different tax rates in Mainland China PR ANRRE R 2,004 (1,577)
Income not subject to tax BARD WA (1,767) (2,006)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TRI0HE 2 2 1,487 [,156
Tax losses not recognised RERZRIBEE 10,487 14,419
Withholding tax in Mainland China AR i TR ER R 1,151 —
Over-provision in prior years LEERERE (234) (3,139)
Tax reduction (Note) gER (M) (168) (382)
12,195 79

Note: The Hong Kong Government has lowered the profits tax rate for the first MieE: HEFERBMASGT  —FKR

HK$2,000,000 assessable profit of one of the subsidiaries to 8.25%. Profits E & Mt B A 7 &2,000,000

above that amount will continue to be subject to the tax rate of [6.5%. 7 TC FE ST B AR B A 1S B X

In addition, certain subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject a lower 15 5Bl & 2 8.25%  H {2 i@

profit tax rate at 5% on taxable income below RMB 1,000,000 (equivalent 2,000,000/ 7T & f& 77 B 7 4

to approximately HK$1,087,000), and 10% on taxable income on taxable A5 Bl B 1R 16.5% BT 1L

income over RMB,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,087,000) G- EB 53 A B A B B 1 R

but below RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,261,000), R A58 45 %R LA A i 38 1,000,000 A

and thereafter at a fixed rate at 25%. R #%(% 18 491,087,000/ 7T )

B BE {0 1R 5% T R Bk - B R
T Uz 25 DA = R 1,000,000 A R 5

% {E #1,087,0007% 7T ) B &
i 183,000,000 A R (£ E Y
3,261,0007% 7T ) &) &F 17 #% 10%
R B ML B BB D RIliE
259 K & E Bt R K -
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FE SRR MR

Il DIVIDENDS I RE
(a)  On 27th February 2023, the Directors resolved not to declare any (a) E’\\\: ET-_=ZF-_A-++tH
interim dividend for the six months ended 3 Ist December 2022. TrEEgHEL FFR

ﬁTM@i E-—_F+=-A1
—t—HIANEAREIRMEMFP

gﬁk/%\ ©
(b)  On 28th September 2023, the Directors resolved not to declare any by RZEZ=FNAZ=+NHE
final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2023. ??Z%%’@%i CEEFEHERD
MBE_ZE_=F,"A=1H
Jtif‘*/)fi{fﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬁn g e
(c)  On 28th February 2024, the Directors resolved not to declare any (0 RZEZWEFE-A=Z+NH
interim dividend for the six months ended 3 Ist December 2023. BIT2ESEER L EFH

RAMBE2_ET_=F+_H
=t+—HIEXNEASREMAF

HRE -
(d)  On 27th September 2024, the Directors resolved not to declare any (d) RZEZMNFNLAZF+EHE
final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2024. TrEZER L BEFEAT

REBEE_T_MFEAA=TH
IEFEEIRERREBARS °

12 LOSS PER SHARE 12 BRER
Basic HE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity EREREBEINERARREENE
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary BRAFABEBITEBR 2 INEF
shares in issue during the year. BHEGHE -

2024 2023

Loss attributable to equity holders of NEIR R B B 1R
the Company (HK$'000) (F%&71) (18,041) (52,007)
Weighted average number of ordinary FAEBITERRZ
shares in issue A1 28 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic loss per share (HK cents per share) BREARER
(B (4.89) (14.09)
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

12 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 BREE@®
Diluted #5
Dilutive loss per share for the years ended 30th June 2024 and 2023 equal RZZE_HAFR_ZT_=FXA
basic loss per share as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share as at =+B - ARRUEAEEEN 2
the years ended 30th June 2024 and 2023. L@ At REBE-_ZT-WOF

RZZE-_=FXA=1+HIEMEF
B SREFEBESRERERN

&8 -
I3 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 13 EERANZH(EE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) EEME)
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Wages, salaries and other allowances TE - Zri & HE AR, 130,569 131,892
Pension costs RIRE KA 4,365 4263
134,934 136,155
There were no forfeited contributions of mandatory provident funds REBEZZ_MNFA=THILF
utilised during the year ended 30th June 2024 (2023: Nil) to reduce future [ I B A AR A H0R H5R il A~
contributions. BaBHR(ZEZ=F : |&) -
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the

year ended 30th June 2024 is set out below:

Name of Director Esftg
Executive Directors yirEs

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) — sFIEERRA(£R)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong SRR

Mr NG Chi Ming REBEE
MrHUI Yan Kuen STAREE

Mr HUI Man Wi FXBRE

Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey STAELE

FEMIBHmRMEE

14 EE2AENEERSE
EEAEBZME

(a) EEHE
BE_Z-_MFEAA=1tAHL
FEBUEEZMEMT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(RERALAIENEAR)
REREM LA RENNNE

Salaries,
other
allowances
and benefits
in kind
5
Efb2
RENAIE
HK$'000
TR

Discretionary
bonuses
BfTHE
ML
HK$'000

Fees
fie
HK$'000
THR

Other
emoluments paid
or receivable

in respect

of Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company or
its subsidiary
undertaking
REBARR
FHNEAR
EDS S
AR
[iB3E]
EhHe
HK$'000

Employer's
contribution
to pension
scheme
ExH
RS2 HR
HK$'000

Housing
Total
2
HK$'000
Tin

allowance
EERE
HK$'000

2,040 2,336 - - 18 - 4394
2,040 2,336 - - 18 - 4394
- 2,09 - - 18 - 2110
- 1,583 - - 18 - 1,601
- 800 - - 18 - 818
- 1,165 - - 18 - 1,183
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e B I ER IR 5E
14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EEZABENERRSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEBEABZME®)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME(E)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(FERALAZENELR)
REEBMZAIERNHE
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company or
Salaries, its subsidiary
other undertaking
allowances Employer's ~ REBAAR
and benefits contribution ~ FHMEAR
inkind  Discretionary t0 pension HEHRH
10 bonuses Housing scheme  EftEZHH
Fees Rzt RfTEE allowance £ [BUE] Total
Name of Director £33 s REMAE WA FERR Bfez#f  EROHe A%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR TiEn TR TER

Independent Non-Executive BUkHiER

Directors
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul Bl 250 = = = = - 250
Mr CHING Yu Lung EmEtE 200 = = = = = 200
Mr YU Chi Kwong REREE 200 = = = = = 200
Total it 4730 10312 = = 108 = 15,150
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the
year ended 30th June 2023 is set out below:

Executive Directors BiTEE

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chaimman) — FFtEBBE4 () 2040 2310
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong TEREE 2040 2310
Mr NG Chi Ming REREE - 2049
Mr HUI Yan Kuen STAEEE - 1 469
Mr HUI Man Wai TXEEE - 7%
MrHUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAREE - 1,159

FEMIBHmRMEE

BEECABRNERZRSE
EBABZME @)

(a) EEHE(E)
HE-F-=E A=TAL
FESREEZHEMT :

in respect
f Director's
her services

connection

Total

g

HK$ 000

TER

- I8 - 4368
- I8 - 4368
- I8 - 2067
- I8 - 1.487
- I8 - 814
- I8 - 177
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14 DIRECTORS BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EBEZHNBFZNEZRSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EBAECEHE ®)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EEHZ(E)

Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company or
its subsidiary
undertaking
HERALT
FEMBRR
HEH R
AMEERT
[E] Total
Gl a%
HK$'000 HK§ 000
TR TR
Independent Non-Executive BUkHTES
Directors
Mr HO Wai Chi, Pl Bl 250 - - - - - 250
Mr CHING Yu Lung EmEEE 200 - - - - - 200
Mr YU Chi Kwong ReREE 200 - - - - - 200
Tota ke 4730 10093 - - 108 - 14931
No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2023: Nil). MRAFERATBEENERS
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an ZHE(ZE_=F &) - R
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation REERAAEERE N TE
for loss of office during the year (2023: Nil). MEEMBEM SR EESH

fLzE(—T_=F: &) -
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors
during the year (2023: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the

termination of the appointment during the year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to or received by third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to any third parties making available the

services of them as a Director of the Company (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors during the year (2023: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year (2023: Nil).

e M SRR MR

14 EEZBNERZREE
EBAECEHE ®)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

EERREF
RAFE RN LA MESFREMH
BREI(ZE_=F : &) -

EEARIEREF
REAFERATERIZEFRIER
EmAESRETABR(Z
To=F | o

DR EEREMEE=S
B E

NAREZEANL EGLIRHE ER
HimESE = F IR S ERG
TAEF(ZE_=F &) -

BEE ZFZEEFZFHH
EANERBRZEFZHHEE
EIERWEN  EEXMA
X8 HEH
MAFERLERESE -
SEEEFNEAEBER
EMEEFRBEHER 2
HMEMR G (ZFE ==
) o

\
/

i R MR
O R

EFAEXE  ZHHAEEH
EAEZ

BT HEEEMBHRRK IS
BREZRXHIN  KEEALF
RS AR B W ERATEM S
RARBZEBMARRZE
FERAMEEETREAEK
REZLEERS ZHHEH
“T=F )

=
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 BEECHNEZNERZRSE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(g) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2023: three) Directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining individuals during the

year were as follows:

EBAECEHE ®)
() BEERBFHMHAL

REERA > EAUSKEHHA
T =T =F: =
fI)REE EME2CRNEX
2HzAHEE  SRT&RS
FMALIR EFEZHMFEB
mr

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET

Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind i + & 28 R EYH = 4812 4947
Discretionary bonus BB IEAT 225 225
Pension costs BRIRE KA 18 18

5,055 5,190

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

B EFBE TS ERBER -

Emolument bands (in HK dollar) s E(ET)

HK$ 1,500,000 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000 7T
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000 7T
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000 % 7T
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T - 3,500,000 7T

Number of individuals

A

2023

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of any office
in connection with the management of the affair of the Company

and its subsidiaries during the year (2023: same).

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REFTHRELT
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 Y% - BERRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
and and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
HELTH HE equipment KER vehicles moulds Total
kg WERE  BERRE  BAERE A8 IAREAR 2%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TAL TEL TEL TAL TEL TAL TAL
At 30th June 2022 R=BZZ#XA=1H
Cost RA 112,245 76287 214991 17,084 8,504 3,748 432859
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (54,146) (66412) (176,131) (14,885) (748) (2300 (321,356)
Net book amount REFE 58099 9875 38,860 2,199 1022 1,448 111,503
Year ended 30th June 2023 BE-g-=f
ARZTHLEE
Opening net book amount HOREE 58,099 9875 38,860 2199 1022 1448 111,503
Additions #m - 2791 6,643 200 1132 0 10979
Disposals e - - ) - (160) - (183)
Depreciation e (2464) (4,107) (7.790) (757) (436) (286) (15840)
Currency translation differences ERER (3.167) (492) (2919) (74) (44) (49) (6,745)
Closing net book amount BREmE 52,468 8067 34771 1568 1514 1326 99714
At 30th June 2023 RZBZ=FXA=1H
Cost KA 105992 76487 205,664 16,521 8908 3,794 417366
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (53524) (68420) (170893) (14953) (7394) (2468) (317652)
Net book amount REFE 52468 8,067 34,771 1,568 1514 1326 99714
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e B I ER IR 5E
|5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved) 15 Y% BERRE®R)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
HEL HE equipment %ER vehicles moulds Total
kEg? S WERRE BRERRE e IARKA AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
Year ended 30th June 2024 BE-EoME
AAZTHLEEE
Opening net book amount BURREE 52,468 8,067 34771 1,568 1,514 1,326 99,714
Additions S - m 6,847 557 834 3 9,050
Disposals & - (118) ()] (221) - - (347)
Depreciation & (2464) (,727) (7,904) (615) (417) @mn) (14464)
Impairment AE - - (894) - - — (894)
Closing net book amount HREEE 50,004 5999 1812 1,289 1871 1,084 93,059
At 30th June 2024 RZB-mEXA=TH
Cost R 105,992 76,719 212,251 16,489 8,759 3824 424,034
Accumulated depreciation and ZHRERAE
impaiment (55.988) (70.720) (179:439) (15,200) (6,889) (2,740) (330,975)
Net book amount REFE 50,004 5999 32812 1,289 1,871 1,084 93,059
Depreciation expense of HK$ 12,111,000 (2023: HK$13,402,000) has been WEEBRI12,111,008 (==
included in cost of sales, HK$213,000 (2023: HK$174,000) in distribution & 113,402,000/ L) B B IEE H
costs and HK$2,140,000 (2023: HK$2,264,000) in administrative expenses. B A 2130008 T(ZE = =
F 11740008 70) B BIEE D #HK
R }%22,140,000/8 (= F = = & ¢
2,264,000/ 70) 2 BEAEITE H -
As at 30th June 2024, the net book amount of property, plant and RZEBEZMEA=1H K&EH
equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted AR T F (B 48 58 49 29,456,000 %8 7T( =
to approximately HK$29,456,000 (2023: HK$30,843,000). T = = 4F : 30,843,000 7L ) Z !

¥ BMEEREBCDEMTRIT R
AEBERBRITEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 Y% - BWERKE®)
(i)  Revaluation, depreciation methods and useful lives (i) EfE WELZZEFMARZEF
B
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using BREMAAIERFHARRE
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual AR 5 B 2 BRI R B E K5t
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: BE2ME BERREBZIE
BT FRETIREE ¢
- Buildings 40 to 50 years —1&F mM+Zh+45
- Leasehold improvements Shorter of the —HEME AR EIE
unexpired lease =& THEHAE
term or 5 years AFEIREE
- Machinery and equipment 8 years — R R AG:E
- Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years —RH KB hE
R A=
®i
- Motor vehicles 5 years — a8 AF
- Tools and moulds 5 years —TEREA e
16 HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. A FREASEREBEAZEE
ZEHL o
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet () RESEEBEHNKERZ
FIE
&
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Right of use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights TE i 2+ AR 15,412 16,141
Properties L/ES 6,438 9,192
21,850 25,333
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2024, the net book amount of leasehold land and
land use rights pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$3,714,000 (2023: HK$3,894,000).

l6 HE#)

() REEEEEEHUXERZ

R-ZE_MFRA=+tB H
&t o L MR EDFE

#93,714,00078 7T.(
3,894,000 7C) B

—F=5F:

AT IRTT

RREERFRITEE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAT

Lease liabilities HEEE
Non-current ERH 1,344 4,154
Current Nk 5,075 5774
6,419 9,928

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement

(i) REEWZEFZERZHE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Depreciation e
Included in cost of sales BEEHEXR 4,012 4,252
Included in administrative expenses BRETEXEH 1,929 1,925
5,941 6,177
Interest expenses included in STABBE R
finance cost (Note 9) MEF S (MEE9) 328 457
Expense relating to leases of FHRHEEEZHE
short-term and low-value leases (Note 8) B E A (FsEe) 7,276 7,031
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FEMIBHmRMEE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted

for

The Group leases various offices and factory. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of | year to 5 years, but may have
extension options as described in (v) below. Addition to right-of-use
assets during the year ended 30th June 2024 were approximately
HK$2,458,000 (2023: HK$1,993,000).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Certain leased assets may

not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and

instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be

used as security for borrowing purposes.
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted

for (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee's incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value

in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lease as s starting point, adjusted to reflect

changes in financing conditions since third party financing was

received;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,

which does not have recent third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has
a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use

that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing

rate.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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FEMIBHmRMEE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted

(iv)

v)

(vi)

for (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-

of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of |2 months
or less. Low-value assets comprise [T-equipment and small items of

office furniture.

Variable lease payments

Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are

linked to an index or a rate.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These options are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used
in the Group's operations. The extension and termination options
held, if any, are exercisable only by the Group and not by the

respective lessor.

Residual value guarantees

The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to
leases during the year ended 30th June 2024 (2023: same).
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWE

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THTT

At beginning of the year F9) 155,426 155,160

Fair value gains on investment KEWMEZ RABEWE
properties (Note 7) (PftEE7) 2,807 2,439
Currency translation differences TE 3 =58 — (2,173)
At end of the year FR 158,233 155426
As at 30th June 2024, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation HE-_Z-_NWFEA=1TH &%
for future repair and maintenance (2023: Nil). B - S HRENMRERBEHD
BREH(ZT=F: &)

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields or for capital WEMFEME  FTEHBEE LM
appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the Group. They are carried BFENX BEREGRBHESW
at fair value. Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss as part M ERE ARG E IR E R EHR K
of other gains, net. WIBEAEEGR - AAEBEED

ERA BN sEMI S —F

BRRFEHER -

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « RETHRATR
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FEMIBHmRMEE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 BREWE(B)

(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair

value, by valuation method.

(a) RAEEZEE
TRANBBEEESNIEARE
BAREMNKEDE -

Fair value measurements at
30th June using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

RAB=1THFAEARH

FTUERBAELHN
DMAREBEEFE(FEIE)
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Recurring fair value measurements wEMANBETE
Investment properties: KREWE -
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —IEREBN—-FHE 129,700 128,000
— Car park units - Hong Kong —FEL BB 3,870 3,730
— Commercial office units - Mainland China —AERREEN
—FER 5,337 5,598
— Industrial building units - Mainland China —IEAREEMN
— P EAM 19,326 18,098
158,233 155426
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers in/(out) of fair REBENER AN EHE Y

value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There was no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.

EHIBERNENOBEE  HER
NABERERZ FHEE -

RERNALEE | - F2NE3E
LEDEESE
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in investment properties
with fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the years ended 30th June 2024 and 2023.

17 BREWE(B)
ARBELEEE)
TERRARBE-_T-_M&ER
TEC=FEXA=+THIEFE
RF A EATTEBEEAND
AEEHE(EIB)NEEY
EY IR

(@)

2024
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
B A it b me
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FEx FExT
Opening balance H AR 23,696 131,730 155,426
Net gains from fair value adjustment A (B BT B F 5 967 1,840 2,807
Closing balance Hy s i 24,663 133,570 158,233
2023
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
B A3 & k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET
Opening balance Hi 4t 8 25,000 130,160 155,160
Net gains from fair value adjustment A SS{E{E A B IFEE 869 1,570 2,439
Currency translation differences i i, =5 (2,173) — (2,173)
Closing balance HRAR a5 80 23,696 131,730 155,426

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « RETHRATR
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$158,233,000 (2023: HK$155,426,000) as at 30th June 2024 by
Chung, Chan & Associates (2023: Chung, Chan & Associates), an
independent professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the investment properties valued. Certain
of the investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating lease arrangements, further summary details of which are

included in Note |7(e) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The
finance department reports directly to the CODM. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the CODM,

finance department and the independent valuer annually.

At each financial year end the finance department:

®  Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

®  Assesses property valuations movements when compared to
the prior year valuation report; and
. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date

between the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.

FEMIBHmRMEE

17 BEWE @)

(b)
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AEBNERENFEFABILE
XHEMBET( T ==
FHEME_T_MOFR

—_= _:ﬂz/\ﬂ —‘f'EMﬁ@
4158233000 T(ZF ==
1 155426,0008 7T ) k1
EMFBERARATEEER -

WHETHENIRE R ED
BB BT AL - 5D
&’éﬁ%%%&%fﬂ%i%kﬂﬂ
FE=ZF E—LFHEEBER
B RAMITE 1 7(e) PIEEE ©
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AREE I AR I A s B HY
HEIUAEMNBEETR
Ao MR EE A EREEER
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B ¥ SRR EE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally

determined using the income capitalisation method which largely

involves the use of unobservable inputs and taking into account

the significant adjustments on passing rentals of the current leases

and capitalisation rates including the outgoings (“Yields"). These

significant unobservable inputs include:

17 REWE (&)
(c) 1EERZM
FIREAM A BEE A EL
MARBETE

AEENREME QA NEE
MRARB IR EAEE - BT
ERAIABERA  XEE
ERAHENEKHERES
HERXHWELRERTER
RWERHE - WFEKRT

TEERARIE -
Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2024 unobservable inputs
RZBZRE Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs TABEHA
i ZRAEE  fHERE FAREHA FUBRGAGE HAABEENERE
HK$'000
TER
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 129,700 Income  Unit passing rents HK$10.19 - HK$12.12 The higher the rental value,
I5REEN-FE capitalisation BNRBAE per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method BYAR and vice versa
Wit % BRI0I9ETE 28T HBELR AAEEER
RZ A
Yields 3.12% - 3.85% The higher the Yields,
ZEX the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
ZREHE  DABEME
RZ A
Car park units - Hong Kong 3870 Income ~ Unit passing rents HK$6,000 - HK$10,725 The higher the rental value,

e -

capitalisation

method

REFTHRRT

BURERE
Yields
$8%

per month per unit
E

the higher the fair value,

and vice versa

BACBTEI0SEL  HESS  ArEESS
2 A
6.46% - 8.4% The higher the Yields,

the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ELEHE  DABHEYE
Rz A
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FEMIBHmRMEE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWHE (@)
(c) Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) 1EEHMW (&)

Fair value at Relationship of

30th June 2024 unobservable inputs

R=B=mE Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description ~A=tH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRAA

i ZRAEE  MEEE  FITERAA FUBEBAEE HAREENEE
HK$'000
TR

Commercial office units and 5337 Income  Unit passing rents RMB22A4| The higher the rental value,

apartment — Mainland China capitalisation BURERE per month the higher the fair value,

BERAEEN-PEAL method per square meter and vice versa

Wk g¥x  HEES ArEEES

BAN4YARE RZ TR

Yields 232% The higher the Yields,

ERX the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

RZ TR
Industrial building units — Mainland China 19,326 Income  Unit passing rents RMB10.73 per month The higher the rental value,
IEREEM-HEAN capitalisation  ERIREH(E per square meter the higher the fair value,
method YAK and vice versa
Yok BRIOBARE  HEER SAEESR
RZ T
Yields 6.67% The higher the Yields,
ZEX% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
BERHE  AABEME
=2 TR

¥
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17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

17 BREWE#)
(c) 1HERME)

Fair value at Relationship of

30th June 2023 unobservable inputs

RZBZ=% Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description NAZTH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRHA
Hi ZAREE BRI FUBERGA FERGALE HRABENER

HK$'000
TATL

Industrial building units — Hong Kong 128,000 Income  Unit passing rents HK$10.00 - HK$12.03 The higher the rental value,
I¥AESM-FE capitalisation BAREHM  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method BFAREA 1000ET and vice versa

W% EN0EL  HESE AAEEER

Rz A

Yields 2.89% - 3.73% The higher the Yields,

0% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

EERHE  RABEME -

Rz /A

Car park units - Hong Kong 3,730 Income  Unit passing rents ~ HK$6,000 — HK$10,225 The higher the rental value,
FBf-F% capitalisation BRREHAE per month per unit the higher the fair value,
method SEMER 60008 and vice versa

Wak El0nsET  HESE AAEESR

Rz Mm%

Yields 6.71% - 8.37% The higher the Yields,

LB XK the lower the fair value,

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

- RETARLH

and vice versa
ZEkfHE  AAEEME -
R Z T
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

FEMIBHmRMEE

17 BREWE#)
(c) 1HERME)

Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2023 unobservable inputs
RZZ=Z=% Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1A technique inputs unobservable inputs TABEEHA
i 2R EE fbERl  FTBEREA FUBEREAEE HRABENEE
HK$'000
T
Commercial office units and 5598 Income  Unit passing rents RMB22A4| The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation BAREMAE  per month per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERAEEN-PEAL method S¥IKEA and vice versa
e NAIARE  BESE AAEESE
RZ TR
Yields 221% The higher the Yields,
ZR% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
Z0%8R PABEME
RZ TR
Industrial building units — Mainland China 18,098 Income  Unit passing rents RMBI0.73 The higher the rental value,
IEREEM-HEAN capitalisation ~ ERIREFHE per month per square meter the higher the fair value,
method §YHAEA and vice versa
Witk 07BARE  BESS LAEEES:
RZ T
Yields 7.08% The higher the Yields,
ZB% the lower the fair value,

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

and vice versa
BERHE  AABEME
2

¥

6 7O (5 BT 3 A A 2 8 -
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWE @)
(d) As at 30th June 2024, the fair value of investment properties (d RZZEZWFSA=+H &
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to & ) % AR ¥ 8. 49 40,542,000
approximately HK$40,542,000 (2023: HK$40,010,000). BIL(ZZTZ=4F : 40,010,000

ATIBEEBTRT  BEAK
BESIRITER

(e) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non- (e) WETAIREHNLLEHE K
cancellable operating leases are as follows: R REWEERIBELT -

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT TR

Not later than one year —FR 6,118 5,895

Later than one year and not later than five years —F BB NMER A F 11,742 1,873

17,860 7,768

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 |ILEE

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Technical know-how B9l 0 78

Cost DN 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation R (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment 2FHRE (2,000) (2,000)

Net book amount BREFE — —
During the years ended 30th June 2024 and 2023, the Directors assessed REBEZZ_NFR_ZTZ=FX
the recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the A=1+HLEFEARA EFEBTRE
carrying value of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its Az W EEETRAEEERER
future use and full provision was made. BEARATEEARKE AT UYE - Fit

FIEL 2R -

128 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ HBETHRAT
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19 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19

20

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEMIBHmRMEE
BAREFAEMEE
WENTBEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET

Financial asset at FVOCI: BARBEFARMEERES
TS EE -
Equity securities, unlisted EETEF R

2,684 2,344

Financial asset at FVOCI represents a 3.6% (2023: 3.6%) equity interest in
an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount

is denominated in HK dollar.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20
PROFIT AND LOSS

BASERAHME U E R B
ﬁ?ﬁi‘%ﬁ“&%%fﬁﬁ%?ﬁ%%ﬁ
ZIELEMRBRZESZ=EN(Z
C=F AN )EE - Jkl:é
BUABTLRELL

BAanBEEFTAEHES
MM BEE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET

Financial asset at FVPL: BRARBESAEHER
EI’J IS EE
Keyman insurance contract, unlisted ERBRREL  ELT

5,959 —

The financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as at 30th June 2024
represented an unlisted investment in a life insurance contract for one
executive director of the Group. The Group was the beneficiary of such
investment. The carrying amount represented the cash surrender value of
the policy and approximated to its fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is categorised

in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value gain or loss on financial assets at FVPL was included in “other

gains, net’.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level I, 2 and 3 during the year.

R-ZE-WFNAZ+THOERATF
Bt NBRZeRMEER —LTT
EERASRBEHNFTNRLETER
B AEEAZBRENTEA R
EEERENRSRREE  WH
HRBREMAHRAFLEES - EA
FEHAABZZEREEFENA
FEERZE=ZE -

BAFEFABEZEHMEEZR
AEEMSHERE Etmls—F
e

RERNTESE| - F2REIBHH
E o
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21

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

B ¥ SRR EE

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 are disclosed
in Note 37.

(@)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2024 was
HK$22,170,000(2023: HK$25,155,000), of which HK$25,034,000
(2023: HK$26,742,000) was attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastics Materials Limited (“NHEPML"). The non-controlling interests

in respect of other subsidiaries were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of RMBI10,179,000 (2023:
RMB8,282,000), equivalent to approximately HK$ 1,064,000 (2023:
HK$9,002,000), were held in Mainland China and were subject to
local exchange control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provided for restrictions on exporting capital from
the region, other than through normal dividends or remittance of

revenue income through import/export companies.

REFTHRRT

21

V= NE]]
R-ZE-_WNENA=+THHETEHMH

B

(@)

BIRFEB IO R 37 55 o

BRI

R-ZE-_WFENA=+HMIE
2= ] 1 %5 48 %8 /22,170,000 74
JL(ZF = = : 25,155,000
JT) v E 125,034,000 L=
T = 4F 26,742,000 70 ) B
REERTEBHERAF(R
WMTREBE]) - BHMKEAR
AIA AR IEE SRR A ERX o

BARH
BRETIRRBHNRE RRITHTF
510,179,000 A\R#E(ZZ2 ==
18,282,000 A\RE)(FEH
11,064,000 TL(Z T == :
9,002,000 7T )) 17 MU 1E 1 [
Wi - 28 INEE FI TR
E o WEINEFFIRGKE S
B A B3R A0 (5 38 1 R AR A
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material

non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the

subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the

21

RAEMIBHRRMEE
Bt 1B 1~ Bl (4%)

(a) EBEARYHFEF s ()
ABEXIFEHE I B
R AR B HEE R
AT H# A REE RN IEE
HERNNBARNEENB

Group. B} o
Summarised balance sheet FELEREX
NHEPML
RETRER
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Current e
Assets BE 98,139 95,691
Liabilities =N (27,022) (33,704)
Net current assets FRBEE 71,117 61,987
Non-current IEED
Assets BE 34,909 38,400
Liabilities af&E (843) (274)
Net non-current assets FIERBBEE 34,066 38,126
Net assets FEE 105,183 100,113
Accumulated non-controlling interests R & IF1% Bl &1 25,034 26,742
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 MIEBAE (&)
(1) EABYHEZHER HF)
BB R D EW T

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised income statement and statement of comprehensive

income
NHEPML
BETEER
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Revenue g 140,688 134,930
Profit before income tax E Rzl 11,201 7,186
Income tax (expense)/credit BIE(Z )RR (1,634) 2,538
Post-tax profit PRt 1% 05 9,567 9,724
Total comprehensive income allocated to EHENHEEE
non-controlling interests SRV il #E 2 2,064 1,565
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest ST F IS R B (714) (7,949)
Summarised cash flows WEH e REX
NHEPML
BETEER
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEB 2RISR
Cash generated from operations REXBREEZR® 25,433 39,031
Income tax paid ik (6,257) (7.028)
Net cash generated from operating activities #E&EBMELA 2 )FHR S 19,176 32,003
Net cash used in investing activities YEEFFIFERZFRE (3,897) (3,806)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBERZFRE (9,919) (45,754)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESEHEZ
cash equivalents g, CEa) 5,360 (17,557)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUI2RERREEE
beginning of year 12,776 31,920
Currency translation differences M H ZRE — (1,587)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEeRRSEH 18,136 12,776

The information above is the amount before inter-company LA &R AFTE QB M A
eliminations. REREE o
NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

INVENTORIES 22 78

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THTT
Trading stocks BOEBEE 203,326 157,592
Raw materials =¥ 68,179 74.304
Finished goods K i 28,772 35,042
300,277 266,938

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of N R IS N

sales in the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately
HK$984,384,000 (2023: HK$941,608,000).

Provision for impairment of inventories amounted to HK$3,461,000
(2023: HK$7,480,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the

consolidated income statement.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

23

RERIZHEEXRRAEN A
984,384,000 (= & = = F :
941,608,000 7T ) °

AN & B R F E 53,461,000 T
T T =4 :7480,000/87L) 2 1F
EREEE UREGEKRERAHE
ERAR AR o

BEZRURRERREE

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

TExT FAT

Trade receivables B 5 WK 206,908 184,072
Less: loss allowance o ERREURERE (4,188) (4,689)
202,720 179,383

Bills receivables JE W Z % 41,113 37,863
243,833 217,246
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

23

ESRRRREREE®)
BESRWHNEERBENTINEE S
o

currencies: KV
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T T
HK$ BT 37,404 30,118
RMB AR 157,213 143,999
usD ETT 12,291 9,955
206,908 184,072

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the
ordinary course of business. They are generally due for settlement within
30 to 90 days and therefore all classified as current. Trade receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional,
unless they contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures

them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date were as

BB SFEANBEEHBBRES
REEERERERFP ZHIE - EK
B SHRE —MEIE0HER -
FTADERRE - BIRE HFIEY
TREGHRESTERER  KRIEH
BEEAMERD  ARAFERE
R NEEHEUBBMAEHRER
EREMZEKRESFIE  BAitt -
H@ BB R EIRE HK AT 2 -

BHRUBSKIRERR 2R DT A

follows: T
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 198,199 173,159
91 — 180 days 91-180 H 5,070 6,208
Over 180 days Bi® 180 H 3,639 4,705
206,908 184,072

134 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ HBE{THRATF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

FEMIBHmRMEE

23 ESRURKREWRRRE®)

EUEBRZIBHBEETER—ANT
B A TIERREN

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000

FE&x T T

HK$ BT 244 —
usD ETT — 205
RMB AREE 40,869 37,658
41,113 37,863

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and

there is no recent history of default on bills receivable.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank's acceptance
bills amounting to approximately HK$25,880,000 (2023: HK$9,660,000)

with recourse in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2024. The transactions

have been accounted for as collateralised bank advances (Note 31).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period

is the carrying values of the receivables (2023: same). The Group does not

hold any collateral as security.

RWREzEEEELQNAEER
#) M B R R W SRR 2 HE R AR 8% o

R-ZZE-_WFNAZ+BEAEEZ
B BB R B 45 49 25,880,000 B L (= F
T =4 19,660,000/ 70 ) HIERTTHECH
EEAE FIRITUBRIRIE S - B
RSB BB RITRIR (M
31) e

EHREAH ERARNKRSRER
AESEASEBREANEEEE
—E=F:HR) KREETHE
BEAESEMNERR °
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24 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND
DEPOSITS

24

9

HBWBME  BARK
Be

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Other receivables H b JrE Uy 518 10,045 4,869
Prepayments SEENEN 19,342 17,694
Deposits ®’e 2,367 2,305
31,754 24,868

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 fTE€mIA

As at 30th June 2024, the Group had two (2023: one) outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts of HK$736,000 (2023: HK$135,000) mainly
to purchase USD (2023: purchase USD). The maximum notional principal
amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at 30th June
2024 was HK$304,200,000 (2023: HK$156,000,000).

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « RETHRATR

RZZE-_NMFA=ZF+H A&EE
EMP(ZTZE_=Z=F: —)HE
736,000 TT( =& = =4 : 135,000
BIL)ZRAXBINERREHNEE
NBET(ZE==F:8XEx)°
RZZ-_EFANAZTAESERR
WHNERHIEHN 2 AR EASHE
£304,200,0008 L(Z & = =
156,000,000 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

FEMIBHmRMEE

26 BERBEEFH

(@)

RBERBEZEH

2024 2023
HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET THTT

Cash on hand B S 497 650
Bank balances IRITHE & 103,736 149,987
104,233 150,637

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

BeRALSHEATIEEA
BB :

currencies:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
HK$ BT 13,144 11,699
RMB AR 61,224 101,348
usD EVi 29,695 37,404
Others HAih 170 186
104,233 150,637

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

deposit rates.

The Group'’s cash and cash equivalents of HK$65,518,000 (2023:
HK$108,903,000) are deposited with banks in Mainland China.
The remittance of these funds out of Mainland China is subject to
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the Government of
Mainland China.

RITEHBRBEERRITERZ
FENH R ERENH B

AEBzBEeRESEHEH
655180008 L(ZFE =4 :
108,903,000 % 7T, ) 7 1 B A3 3
ZRITETF - BBEHEEASED
AR A 52 PR A HR B A R
& 2 INE B Bl 3315 o
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(b) Restricted bank deposits
As at 30th June 2024, RMB33,724,000 (equivalent to
HK$36,657,000) (2023: RMB33,196,000 (equivalent to
HK$36,082,000)) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
serving of debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 31).
The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.06% (2023:
1.75%) per annum with remaining maturity less than twelve months

after the balance sheet date.

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as

26 RERFAESEH #)

(b) ZRHRITFH
—E-_mEXA=Z+H"
33,724000 A & B(% B 8
36,657,000 L )(Z T = =
F 133,196000A R ¥ (5 &
#936,082,0007 70 ) ) & X BR
BIERITIE R - FRRNRITIER
RITRHEBRERNEERE
(BEE31) - ZIRFIHRITFER
WREFEH 2 —BHER(Z
Eo-F:Hhz—HtH)
ZEEFE  UREEAMER
HEFERER AR+ =@A -

27 BERNARREANRE
EET LR L ES §:3: P

follows: RESITT -
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 49,774 55,692
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 2,479 70
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 1,225 1,007
53,478 56,769
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 27

The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair

values, and are denominated in the following currencies:

FEMIBHmRMEE

EZRAREENREE@)

BHRNRARENREZREER
HARBEMEE XATIEES
B

o0\

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
HK$ BT 30 —
RMB AREE 35,152 33,957
usD ETT 18,296 22812
53,478 56,769

28 OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 28 BEMENSRRTERER

ACCRUALS

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
F# T T T
Contract liabilities BHEaE 7,753 9,005
Other payables and accruals Hib R R AR E A 31,958 27,991
39,711 36,996
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 29 BARKBARE
Share capital RK
Number of
ordinary
shares of Share capital
HK$0.10 each nominal value
SEREE N
0.10TZ HK$’000
ZEREE FHx
Authorised: SRTEMA
At Ist July 2022, 30th June 2023, RZE-_—_F+AH—H -
I'st July 2023 and 30th June 2024 —E-=FXA=+A8"
—E=F+tA—BK
—E-EANA=1A 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
At Ist July 2022, 30th June 2023, MR-T-—F+A—0H -
Ist July 2023 and 30th June 2024 ZE-=FXA=1+H"
—E-=FtA—HK
T oNFESNAZTAH 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium B EE
HK$’000
FET
At Ist July 2022, 30th June 2023, R-TB-—F+A—0H -
Ist July 2023 and 30th June 2024 —E=FXA=F+H"
—E-=F+A—HEK
ZEWFEARA=TH 62,466
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FE SRR MR
30 RESERVES 30 f#fE
Retained
Sub-total earnings Total
Mt REER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR
At Ist July 2022 RZZZZE+A—A (3.119) 9,640 1,988 52772 61,281 464,592 525873
Loss for the year TEEE - — — — — (52,007) (52,007)
Currency translation differences EXEH — - - (52299) (52299) - (52299)
Currency translation differences BE-FNBAR
released upon liquidation BRRELER
of a subsidiary - - - (1,789) (1,789) - (1,789)
Fair value loss of financial asset RAREEFAEMZELS
at FvoCl MEBBEL AAEEER — — 431 — (431) — 30
2021/2022 final dividend paid S ety
R EERERE - — — — - (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2023 RZZZ=F/A=1H 3,119 9,640 1557 (1316) 6762 405,201 411963
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

30 RESERVES (Continued) 30 fRE#E)

Other reserves

Hitfd
Financial asset
at FVOCI
reserve
Capital BAAEE Exchange
reserve sTAHM  fluctuation
(Note) Revaluation KA reserve Retained
EAGRE reserve HBEE EX Sub-total earnings
(Mz) Bk e REBRE Mt RERA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
At Ist July 2023 RZZZ=F+A—A (3,119 9,640 1,557 (1,316) 6,762 405,201 411,963
Loss for the year TEEE = = = = = (18,041) (18,041)
Fair value loss of financial asset BAREEGALMZERE
at voCl WEBEEL MEEER — = 245 = 245 = 245
Transactions with BIFEGRGE RS
non-controlling interests — — — — — 3,574 3,574
At 30th June 2024 RZFZRESA=1H (3,119) 9,640 1,802 (1,316) 7,007 390,734 397,741
Notes: Pt 5E
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital reserve from reorganisation (Note (a)) ERFEBEE M () 408 408
Changes of interests in subsidiaries without PNEH I AR S
change of control (Note (b)) NAEREE (M (b)) (3,527) (3,527)
3,119) (3,119)

KRB Z BARE TR RE R R
BRARZ ELREEER D #E
ER—NAAFERRBRBEEEE
ATEA]) BT ZIRAREAR
BB I B A B Z IR AN E AR
WM& ZZH -

(@)  The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the (@)
non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and
the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the

“Reorganisation”).

FBHRTFEANERREREE
(NREERIR)PTEENEARRR -

(b)  The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the (b)
change of interests in subsidiaries without change of control.
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31 BORROWINGS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

31 B8

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Loans due for repayment within ER—FABEZER
one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) —HEM (LS. 1(e)) 164,519 143,449
Trust receipt loans due for repayment FER—FAEBEZET
within one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) WEER—
BEARHFES. 1 (e)) 195,474 185,813
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 23) IRITRAIREE B (M1 23) 25,880 9,660
385,873 338,922
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their AEBEEZRAEERERAAREE
fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's E - WA T EE BN :
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TET
HK$ BT 141,872 129,287
RMB AR 58,473 30313
UsD e 185,528 179,322
385,873 338,922

At 30th June 2024, all of the Group's borrowings are wholly repayable

within five years.

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out

R-Z-_WMENA=+H £E2
EEANTEFRE2HEE -

RIRE B iph % B AR IR BSE FEX

in the loan agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand TEREINFEBREZEEESRE
clause are as follows: R

2024

HK$'000
FTEx

Within | year

—FRA 385,873

2023
HK$'000
TAT

338,922
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31 BORROWINGS (Continued) 31 & M)
The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the REEBBEXRAAREEZERE A
weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows: REFHHER R INEFHREAT

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FET

— At fixed rates — [&7E FJ 385,873 338,922
385,873 338,922

2023
HK$ RMB usD
BT AR e

Trust receipt loans ErtEE R 6.47% —  521% 6.43% —  6.86%
Short-term bank loans FHIRITE K 420%  4.65% —  597%  435% —
Bank advances for RITALR BB B K
discounted bills — 2.76% — — 2.93% —
Borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note ERUAEERLSIME - BER
I5), leasehold land and land use rights (Note |6), investment properties HEMFI5) HELH R LHE
(Note 17) and restricted bank deposits (Note 26(b)) of the Group. AR 16) - REWE(MITE17)
KSR HIEIRTTIE KK EE26(0))
A -
Bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted WM ERE IR BB TIRTT
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank’s acceptance PrERITRRE JI RERENRTT
bills and the related proceeds of the same amount are included in the PR RNEEBERALFHAR
Group's trade and bills receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings TARRERERBMZREMENK
respectively at the end of the reporting period. DHBERAEE 28 5 RUR K

FEU R (3T 23) RAEHEE -
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxation authority. The following amounts, determined after

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

FEMIBHmRMEE

32 EEBIE
EEEETRTENEBERER
ERBAEHEAGERY  BETHR
SRS B A — B B - BT SR
EFEHEEREBEEMEE &
SAEEEEE THEEREA
BESEBEENIE -

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Deferred income tax assets FIEFIEE E 9,805 9,102
Deferred income tax liabilities RIER A E (4,928) (6,275)
4,877 2,827

The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows:

BREEAMSHAR B ARSI

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TET

At beginning of the year F7) 2,827 2,829
Credited to consolidated income EREWE R A (NR)

statement (Note 10) (F¥zE10) 2,050 152

Currency translation differences e 5 =5 — (154)

At end of the year FR 4,877 2,827
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 EFEFLIE (4%)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the FRNREHBEERAGB & (H
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the B —E MR 2 SEEREEAT) AT -

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Fair value gains on ~ Accelerated tax

Deferred income tax liabilities: investment properties  depreciation Withholdings tax Total
REM*
EEHEEE: DAEERE MEBH T E AR #E

2024 IRWIVE 2024 EEPIVEY 2024 [NIVER 2024 EEEPIVE
HK$'000 JETEYNEN HK$'000 WRIEIUNN HK$'000 WRICINN HK$'000 RISV
cd AT R AT ERRd TET g TET

At beginning of the year E30) 810 615 4539 4931 1,501 644~ 6850 7,190
Charged/(credited) to consolidated ~ TE4RA W&

income statement ne/(GEA) 348 247 (629) (185  (80) — (1,082 62
Currency translation differences EHZER — (52) — (207) — (143) — (402)
At end of the year R 1,158 810 3910 4539 700 1,501 5,768 6,850

Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets: Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
EEHEEE Ef BEER HEHKRE aE
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
LEXOOR HKS'000 MalE0A HKF000 MalEXUOR HKS'000 MalEXIN HK$000
Thx WEpoy TET EEwyd THET EEEVA TiET IR

At beginning of the year, as restated ~ F (AL E51)) 7569 7373 285 490 1,823 2156 9,677 10019
Credited/(charged) to consolidated ~ TE4RA M@K

income statement A/ (1K) 407 566 250  (205) 311 (147) 968 214
Currency translation differences EHER — (370) — - — (186) — (556)
At end of the year X 7976 7569 535 285 2,134 1823 10645 9,677

146  NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ HBETHRATF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. At 30th June 2024, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted
to approximately HK$464,533,000 (2023: HK$359,161,000). These tax
losses have no expiry date except that approximately HK$ 12,974,000
(2023: HK$9,827,000) will expire from 2025 to 2029 (2023: 2024 to
2028). The potential deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax
losses which have not been recognised amounted to approximately
HK$81,059,000 (2023: HK$60,097,000).

As at 30th June 2024, deferred income tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to unremitted profits earned by certain Mainland subsidiaries
of the Group amounting to approximately HK$463,857,000 (2023:
HK$418,263,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. During the year
ended 30th June 2024, deferred income tax amounted to approximately
HK$700,000 (2023: HK$1,501,000) has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of withholding tax attributable
to unremitted profit earned by a Mainland subsidiary of the Group that

shall be distributed in the foreseeable future.

32

SR IR
IR RER TH (&)

B A AT TS B 1R T SR AV IR E P
SHEEERNEB MBS
AT RE B R AR R ERT B AN BRI
D RZE_WNFENA=ZFTH K
5 13 30 4% Bt AT 45 8% LUK 8 oK R B R
Tt U 25 1 2 7% /B 18 4 464,533,000 78
JTL(ZFZ =4 : 359,161,000/ 7T )
e SRR XE BT 45 1 & 2 £981,059,000
B IT(Z & = = F 160,097,000
L) BT -_RAFE-_FT_AH
F(ZEZ=F: T _NFZF
TN BBEEERLD
712,974,000 (= & = = F ¢
9,827,00087T) °

R-ZE-_NMEXA=+H A&H
WARETPERNBHBARZE
Bk B R B 3R & M) 2k £9463,857,000
B IT(Z T = = 4F : 4182630008
TIZEREZEERTHERE -
EAREE A2 S YR #
EESR LA&EATEMZHﬂ:;xﬁE
BT Rn_Z =
FXA=Z+8" ZK%I&%—F‘&EPI
AL B A B 2 R R 2 R A g
o8B BREUKE R % A R TB BB Bi1E
th #9700,000%8 T(Z & = = F -
1,501,000 87T ) 2 IEFER B -
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33 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 33 KEHRERER
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (a) BBHAGREEEXEBEL
generated from operations: 2R -

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Loss before income tax TRIEBE (4,638) (50,860)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE:
— Depreciation of property, —-ME - BEX
plant and equipment RIBITE 14,464 15,840
— Gains on disposal of property, —HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment F i W (566) 7)
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —EREEENE 5,941 6,177
— Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative —INERHIGHZ AR
financial instruments BEEE (=) 543 (136)
— Fair value loss on financial assets through —EBANBEFAEH
profit and loss BRI BEERR
BEEX 1,398 —
— Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary — B REE WS — (5,062)
— Unrealised fair value gains on —RERREMEZ DR
investment properties EENE (2,807) (2,439)
— (Reversal of)/provision for loss —E SR ERER)
allowance on trade receivables B (500) 883
— Provision for impairment of —GFEREEERE
inventories, net — F 5 3,461 7,480
— Interest income — R BUA (865) (686)
— Interest expense —FEXZH 23,601 17,309
— Impairment of property, —WE  BEKRKREB
plant and equipment ZRE 894 —
Changes in working capital: BEESEF
— Inventories —-F8 (36,800) 119,014
— Trade and bills receivables, — B S RUHR KRB -
other receivables, R E IR
prepayments and deposits BRRRZ® (32,973) 23,354
— Trade and bills payables, —BIENFRRER
other payables, B HENR R
deposits received and accruals PRI & RTERER (541) (36,890)
Cash (used in)/generated KEEB(ER) EE
from operations ZHE® (29,388) 93,977

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REFTHRELT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMFRRM T
33 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 33 ZRATRERM®
(Continued)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from (b) EHEREREZA HE
sales of property, plant and equipment comprise: ¥ - BERRE R FE
8%
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net book amount (Note |5) AREDFE (MH3E 15) 347 183
Gains on disposal of property, HEME. BELKEE
plant and equipment (Note 8) Z BB (MEEs) 566 7

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

HEWE  BE&ERE
Fri8 913 190
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RS HRRMEE
33 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 33 KERERERE)
(Continued)
(c) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) BEXBEEERAEZH
activities is as follows: b1
Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
BE HEAE ko
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FTET THERT
At Ist July 2022 RZZEZZFtH—H 392,827 13214 406,041
Cash flow REMR
— Proceed from loans —HIBER 960,559 — 960,559
— Repayment of loans —BEEX (893,464) — (893,464)
— Increase in trust receipt loans — (B ERR D (120,379) — (120,379)
— Repayment of lease liabilities —ERHEEE — (5,268) (5,268)
Non-cash changes ESR )
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEAEEN — 1993 1993
— Exchange differences —EHERE (621) (n (632)
At 30th June 2023 RZZE-_=FA=1+H 338922 9,928 348,850
Cash flow REMR
— Proceed from loans —ILER 1,116,683 = 1,116,683
— Repayment of loans —[EEER (1,079,395) — (1,079,395)
— Increase in trust receipt loans — (SR B SR N 9,663 = 9,663
— Repayment of lease liabilities —ERHEEE — (5,967) (5,967)
Non-cash changes IS EE
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEAEEN = 2,458 2,458
At 30th June 2024 RZTZWFANA=1H 385,873 6,419 392,292
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34 COMMITMENTS

(@)

(b)

Capital commitments

At 30th June 2024, the Group had the following capital commitments
for addition of property, plant and equipment:

AR ERRMIEE
34 EIE
(a) EFERE

RZZE-_MFERA=tHE " K
SEERNE BEMRREBZ
BAEGENT

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Contracted but not provided for BB R 2,300 1,439
Other commitments (b) Hft#EE

On 15th June 2022, the Group entered into a non-cancellable
operating lease agreement with an agent of the Mainland China
local government authority to lease an industrial building premise
for 5 years with a minimum lease payment of RMBI | per square
meter. During the non-cancellable lease period, the Group commits
an three years tax payment of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$10,870,000), including the corporate income tax
and value added tax, from its business operation in the region to
the Mainland China local government authority. Any shortfall on the
committed tax payment would cause 5% increase in monthly lease

payment in the subsequent year.

R-ZZTE-_—_FXA+HHA XK
SRR - ITEAREREYE—
HR B P 3 b, 75 IEROAT X B R
E—ABPRAFZAIRBELEE
HEEH ZEEeABYA
KITAR®E o A1 Al #UiE
EHHEA - AEBFER=F
e L Hh (@ 2 7 5 S M R%
B A RS S
£ 1K10,000,000 A R ¥ (% &
#910,870,000% 7t ) 2 TR E (B
BEEMEGHREER) - £
AR BB R ERIE R BER
FHEFARSLEABESZ
+3# -
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares.
The remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of
the shares of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain

Directors of the Company.

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the
Group and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note 14

to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Transactions with related parties

In addition to those disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions were carried out with

related parties:

BEALRRS

N & [E #H Good Benefit Limited (£
REBABRREESEMKLZAF])
ZH - EEBARR A AT =
B BB 2T
LR EREZFA ° Good Benefit
Limited & £ K& BB AR A
LEDEFERTA °

AARIMBEFHRASAEE L
EZERAR  HFAFMCO NS
B MRME 145 -

(a) EBEBBALHIXE
RATE BIEIARMI G 14 PR ER
Hh - BRI A THITHR S0
T

2024 2023
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Lease payment to related parties: TRABATZHERNK
— Build Fair Limited (Note i) —RBARRE (M) 989 988
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BAERBRHERAAE
Company Limited (Note i) (B3 Gi)) 925 946
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Note i) — Rt ER S A (PR & (i) 276 300
2,190 2,234
Addition of right-of-use assets: EFREEEREM
— Build Fair Limited (Note i) —SBERAF(MEFEG)) 1,696 1,149
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —AEBRAERAE
Company Limited (Note ii) (P &E (i) 557 844
2,253 1993
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FEMIBHmRMEE
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35 EBALRZ(#E)
(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (a) EBBBALHXZ (&)
Notes: 5T
0) Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr. HUI Sai Chung, a (i) SRAERNGBAEARRES
Director of the Company. RS2 EHE -
(i) Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly iy BRZBEHARAFHAR
owned by Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company. NAEFFEXEELERE
PSR
(i) Mr. HUI Sai Chung is Director of the Company. (iy FIHREERKAARES -
Lease payment made to related parties are on mutually agreed basis. S TEBATHEMEER

BIRETRIBERETL -

(b) Year-end balance arising from related party transactions (b) BB LXK 5 FEAREGHE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Lease liabilities to related parties: THEBAT 2 HERE

~ Build Fair Limited —RBRARRQA 1,705 816

— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BARERBRHMBRAA
Company Limited 905 1,183
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung — IR A 412 688

3,022 2,687
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

36 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

36 BRARERADF
EERAAATZ RRERAT

37 FEMBLF

Good Benefit Limited (7£ 55 B # B X
BEFMEIZRR])

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 and RZEZWHFRZZZ=FA
2023: =tB AREZEEHER RN
™
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
*kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name MR R 5 ERTRAR Principal activities rEEREEZ
=L RAEANER RAEREXR FEXER FAE#ES
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100 100
Company Limited RBEBRRHS 1002 7T REER
(Note b) (Ff5ED)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$93,200,000 Manufacture and sale 100 100
Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000 47T of colorants
REREBBREEBRDA  enterprise and compounded
F B A3 plastic resins
IEBELE SHERHEEERER
B A
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary ~ Manufacture and trading 100 100
Technology Limited 55 shares of HK$ | each of colorants
BEEEEFRAA] 500,000 xR EE and compounded
BTz &R plastic resins
ERREEEHR
BB AN
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture of 76.2 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited B shares of HK$ | each engineering plastic
BRETREHMARRDA 2,000,000 R F AR E (B products
| BT B SETRREBER
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 and

2023: (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

37 FEME QT (&)
RZE-_MFER-_ZE-=ZF A
=t+H AABRNZETEMBLFM
™ (&)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal entity

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/

registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name MR AL it B ERTRHE Principal activities rEEREZ
=1 R+ EANER R EMER EIREH FrEkER
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary Investment holding 100 100
Materials Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each and property holding
BREPBRHABRAF LooofREREE  REAEBRERAENER
BT & B
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ I each (note c)
500,000 B &A% (B
| BT B
BEFER (3T c)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Trading of 100 100
Materials (Hong Kong) N shares of HK$ | each plastic materials
Limited 500,000 B &A% E (B BEZBRM
REBBRH(FE) BT EBR
BR AR
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Mainland China HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale 100 100
Materials Co., Limited * wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 8 7T of colorants
FEREERBRE enterprise and compounded
ERAA B A3 plastic resins
SEBELE SLENBHEEEER
EEaKEE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic Mainland China HK$ 10,500,000 Manufacture and sale 100 100

Materials Co., Limited

SERABBRE enterprise
BRAF] B A3
NEBERE

* wholly foreign-owned

10,500,000 % 7T,

of colorants

and compounded
plastic resins
SUENHERER R
=Ry gl
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AR A5 ERaR b aE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 and

2023: (Continued)

FENB AT &)
RZEBE_WNFR_ZE-_=ZFA
=+H ARRZEEHMBRRN
T (&)

37

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

*kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name ML S B ERTRHE Principal activities rEEREZ
=1 R+ EANER R EMER FTEER FrEEER
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale 100 100
REEEER DA BE shares of HK$ | each of plastic products
5000 BREE - RERHEZBEMR
BT & B
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
Materials (Shanghai) * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 37T plastic products
Co., Limited enterprise BEIRBBER
BRITREH(LE) RE R
BRAA SEBERE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Mainland China US$100,000 Trading of colorants 100 100
Trading Co. Limited * wholly foreign-owned 100,000 % 7T and compounded
EEREBHERARLA enterprise plastic resins
B A3 BEEECHLES
SEBELE A PR Bs
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic  Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
(Hong Kong) Limited BH shares of HK$ | each plastic products
BETRIH(FR) 1,000,000 % & BX I & BEETREBEM
BR AR | BT BB

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -
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FEMIBHmRMEE

FEMBE LT #E)
RZEFE-_mER_ZT_=F,<H
Z+tH ARBZEBWEBE G M

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 and
2023: (Continued)

37

>l

™: (%)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

*kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest

held by the Group

Name MR AL it B ERTRHE Principal activities rEEREZ
=1 R+ EANER R EMER EIREH FrEkER
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Mainland China US$1,200,000 Manufacture and sale 100 100
Materials Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 1,200,000 37T of colorants
EFIRETERBRE enterprise and compounded
ERAA B A3 plastic resins
IEBELE SHERHERERER
EEaKERE
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 Trading of 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R # plastic materials
EMMBRBEESHEMRAT enterprise BEEBBRRE
REINM
IEBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale 100 100
Company Limited B shares of HK$ | each of biodegradable
REGRRER AR AR 10,000 R A EE plastic materials
| BT ERR RERHERREBRH
Ngai Hing Engineering Mainland China HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
Plastics (Dongguan) * wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 % 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise EETREBER
RERTIIRZHERAF FEAM
INEBELE
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 and

2023: (Continued)

37 FEMBELT#E)
RZE-_MFER-_ZE-=ZF A
ZtH ARRZEEWEBERA AWM
T (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

*kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name SRR AR it B ERTRAR Principal activities KEEBEHEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R EX-3 308 FrEkER
Shanghai Coltec Advanced Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of colorants 100 100
Materials & Technologies ~ * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T and compounded
Company Limited enterprise plastic resins
Nabisl - SUI R ERREsT FEIA BEEECHLES
BRAT HNEBELY AR
Monceris Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 84.5 84.5
EEBARAR B8 shares of HK$ | each REER
10,000 B &A%
HE BT
2 BB
Monceris (Shanghai) Materials Mainland China RMB1,000,000 Trading of colorants 84.5 84.5
Technology Limited * wholly foreign-owned 1,000,000 A R#& and compounded
2EE(LE)MEEE enterprise plastic resins
BRAT FEIA BEEECHLES
EBELE A PR Be
Dongguan Coltec Advanced ~ Mainland China HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants 100 100
Materials & Technologies ~ * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 % 7T and compounded
Company Limited enterprise plastic resins
REBAZH AR FEIA BEEECHLES
BRLIA EBELE A PR Bs
Tianjin Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T plastic materials
RERETHERERAE enterprise BEEBRREH
B A3
EBELE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -
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FEMIBHmRMEE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 and

2023: (Continued)

37 FEME AR @)

RZEFE-_mER_ZT_=F,<H
Z+tH ARBZEBWEBE G M

™: (%)

>l

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

*kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name MR AL it B ERTRHE Principal activities rEEREZ
=1 R+ EANER R EMER EIREH FrEkER
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 100 100
RETIREBRRAA] B8 shares of HK$ | each REER
10,000 fx B AR {E
BT B
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& plastic materials
BEMm R ETE BREA enterprise BEEZRBRE
BRLA REI A
IEBELE
Chongging Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& plastic materials
EEMRETEBERER enterprise HEBBERER
BRAIA E A
IEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& plastic materials
FERETBBER enterprise BEEBRBER
BRAIE B A3
EBELE
NHH Technology Company ~ Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale 76.2 38.86
Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each of personal care
RER BB AT 2,000,000 B &A% products
HE | BT BEEMEAZEER®
BB
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2024 and
2023: (Continued)

Notes:

(a)  All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands are
limited liability companies. All subsidiaries established in Mainland China are
wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

(b)  Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held
by the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held
by the Company.

(c)  The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in
the profits or surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive
notice of or attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of
their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by
the holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

(d)  The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « RETHRATR

37

FEMWB QT (E)

JrAp——

“FERZTE=ZF7

H
=+RB ARBZEZEMBLRAIN
™: (%)

>t

P&

)

(b)

(d)

AERERREBEA R SIM
RIzZMBRARAHABEREER
Al e FTARPBERNMRY 2 HEA
A RINEEDRE

A E5l 2z = 28 A R Ngai
Hing (International) Company
Limited A AR B HEIFAIN - A
RRFEERAE -

BB R ER AR ([ E]) &
BRERE Uﬂ’ﬁzﬁﬁ/\fﬂﬁé/“
BEZ MR EED K

1 JEEI%%%ZMLM%%ZHX%&Q@%HX
RAGRSHHERHABRRAEH
RELERE-

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited JAZR & 48 (B 478 TR
SERIEROFHEARLATEERZ
SR Ap 2 BBARHE -

ERIHEERAUAFEEER
REEZEXEBRA KRB EEFE
ZEBBDZARFIMBELRRF - &
%*wi%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ\ H b M B2 B 2 5718
TERBRILE -
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38 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

During the year ended 30th June 2024, the Group acquired 49% of
the issued shares of NHH Technology Company Limited. The Group

recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$3,574,000.

39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FEMIBHmRMEE

38 BAFEREZRZIXS

HE_FT-_WNFAA=+HIF
B AEBWRETRAEMNZARA
Al49% M B EITIRM - AEBEER
FE4E Il M 2R 4> 3,574,000 T ©

39 £@TEGRER)

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE F#&T FHTT
Financial assets at amortised cost BKEE-HaMK
BE  REBHERE
Trade and bills receivables I ERA R EREE 243,833 217,246
Other receivables and deposits HAh R MR & 24 12,412 7,174
Restricted bank deposits REIK M RITIER 26 36,657 36,082
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReER 26 104,233 150,637
397,135 411,139
Financial asset at FVOCI BEAABEFTAHEM
2ERENTBEE
Financial asset at FVOCI BRASEBEGTAEM
2HEKENIBEE 19 2,684 2,344
Financial asset at FVPL BRkEE-RAAEE
EREBRIER
Financial asset at FVPL HiRaE AR EE
FHiRE BRI 20 5,959 —
Financial liabilities-fair value A BE-RAREE
through profit or loss EBBEFEIER
Derivative financial instruments TESRTAE 736 135
Financial liabilities-other financial A E - HuE
liabilities at amortised cost B8 BREBHRAK
Trade and bills payables B RN RENZIR 27 53,478 56,769
Other payables and accruals HivfaI R TERRE A 28 31,958 24,535
Lease liabilities HERE 16 6,419 9,928
Borrowings EP= 31 385,873 338922
477,728 430,154
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 40 ARENEEEBRRM
THE COMPANY wHEE
Balance sheet BEASMEX
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FET FHBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEARRE 62,711 62,711
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i =NEIEN 102,525 106,556
Financial asset at fair value through BAREEGTAEH
profit or loss BV BEE 5,959 —
Other receivables H b fE R 207 154
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEoFHE 459 312
109,150 107,022
Total assets BEE 171,861 169,733
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable AREBRREGRER #E
to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 36,920 36,920
Share premium & iy 62,466 62,466
Other reserve H i #E a 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings R % A a 4,684 7,063
Total equity HER 166,581 168,960
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals TEIRE M 818 773
Borrowing B 4,462 —
5,280 773
Total equity and liability BERRAEE 171,861 169,733
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AR EERABEREHESTERN
Directors on 27th September 2024 and was signed on its behalf —E-NMFEAA-+TEB#E W
RREFEHRF
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
audi) TR
Director Director
EE 2
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet (Continued)

Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company

40

FEMIBHmRMEE

KABRNEEERBERERG
B2 @)

BEERMEZX(A)
BIFE () ARRIFEES

Other reserve -
contributed
surplus
(Note)
Hibf#E - Retained
BB earnings Total
(BiHaE) R EBEF FoE ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
At st July 2022 RZE-_—_F+A—H 62,511 10,340 72,851
Profit for the year $f|5/ﬁ1ﬂ — 4,107 4,107
2021/2022 final dividend paid ==
ZEFERBRE — (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2023 R-ZZE=—=FXA=H 62,511 7,063 69,574
At Ist July 2023 N—TE-=ZF+HA—H 62,511 7,063 69,574
Loss for the year REREE = (2,379) (2,379)
At 30th June 2024 RZZEZWFARA=TH 62,511 4,684 67,195

Note:

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying

subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

BisE

KNQA 2 E R JINgi Hing
(International) Company Limited PAE 434
MABZzHGARRESEARAREE
BABETZROMEME L ZHE - K
B EGRATEFTBEABTBIE QT
ZIEBEER -

BREBRE-NAN-FRAVE BEHA

BAHETRE - BIEBARERMRE
(0 2 B TR 1 5 R 62 59
e EOREER B B () AT

ﬁ?ZT“ﬁEEQHﬁIﬁﬁﬁﬁéEE%
REBETRAERMDRE ZEE " 8
ZARABERIRN RS EEHE
RPER DI ©
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41

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

B ¥ SRR EE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

41.1 Principles of Consolidation

(@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the group. They

are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet

respectively.

REFTHRRT

41

TESTHRRME

41.1 &OFER

(a)

W& 22 7]
MEAREASEEH
BEEEGIENME
(BREEBIEER)-
EAKERAA2EZE
B8 M 7 42 7T & 0] 3 10 [
R ok EE
mo WERNEBREY
ZETENBNATENS
(O] ¥ B - 7K 5 [ B4
ZEIf-MEBARER
tlEEEEAEEZA
et AR - BEARF
RS ER L BRE
EABEARR

EEANRARHEZRS
FTEEZEHRRRER
W T LAY 8 - BRIER
SMEHEEZEEER
B &g TRXR&EH
BRI TAHE - WE
NAIZ B BEDIRE

EEHNE - ARERE
AEBERBZBRRTAE

BRAERDBINEGS
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B2 RNMEERRE
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.1 Principles of Consolidation (Continued)

(®)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate

reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

41.2 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,

has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company that

make strategic decisions.

41.3 Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“finance income” or “finance costs". All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income

statement within “other gains, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive

income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none

of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)

that have a functional currency different from the presentation

currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i

(iif)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

income and expenses for each profit or loss account are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the

rate on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

consolidated other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition

of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in equity.
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4] SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 4] FESTTHEREBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
41.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

41.3 HEBRE(E)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal (d) BIN&EH) e EFIES 7

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company

are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and

are not recognised in consolidated profit and loss.
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41.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or Hg 2 A ABEZERE
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is B EEEZEBEEABE K
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item P4 B ) 2 A AN 5= B K %

TR B Z R A SE AT B B
EmERREREE -
FrERMEERRENEESE
Z R A R W g R R 5 2
¥ o

will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.4

41.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
carried at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment property are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains/losses. If
an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost, including

related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.5

41.6

Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on valuations carried
out by external valuers. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated profit or loss as valuation gain or loss in “other gains,

net”.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets - Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.

41.8 Financial assets

(a)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit

or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(@)

)

(©

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when

its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecogntion

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are expensed in profit or loss.
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FEMIBHmRMEE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(©

Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash

flow characteristics of the asset.

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in “other gains, net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated

income statement.
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4] SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 4] FESTTHEREBE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.8 Financial assets (Continued)

41.8 BFIBEEZE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.9

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or
losses depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualified
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-

current.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss within “other gains, net".

41.10 Inventories

41.11

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts, if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.12 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

41.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown

in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

41.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

|2 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.15 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

41.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group meausres its tax balances wither based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better predication of the resolution of the

uncertainty.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

B ¥ SRR EE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(®)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

B ¥ SRR EE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.17 Employee benefits

(@)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme
is a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further legal or constructive obligations to pay further

contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and its relevant employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income with a maximum of HK$ 1,500 per month,
as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in Mainland China. Contributions
are made by the Group on a monthly basis to those state-
sponsored retirement plans based on a percentage of the
relevant income of the relevant employees. The Group has no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond
its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

€

(b)

(©

Pension obligations (Continued)

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits
expenses when they are due and are not reduced by
contribution forfeited by those relevant employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a

cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Option Scheme”). The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, including any market
performance conditions; excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting conditions; and including

the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

41

FEMIBHmRMEE

FTESHBERE @)

1117 IESEF ()

(@)

(b)

(©

RIKALEE)
HRERNKERASE
ERAMAx AT AH
2 HEBHNARER
EmREMMENHR
s D o AT IR IR
B RRKABDRK
NHMERREE -

1S R
BEFHRZENNEER
EFERER - At E
EHEERHEEBRMER
Bm&ERZFRE T#
- BEZHRBED R
BREITERR E2E
BIEAREBAL -

KRG B EEZ BB &
7

AEBEEUREN
B B £ 3R B 5t 3 (T 38 A
BB D UREB
P Xt 2 P R B R
BRARBEDERRH
X RAXEBNZEM
RhERkiEZANEE
REX ETEELH
MG EEGRSE - BX T
B AR 5 M IR T 5
KB Z TGN T
BT IR TR

ANNUAL REPORT FE R 23/24

181



182

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
performance and service conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium when the options are exercised.

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the
Group, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible
participants to take up share options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. No share options were granted or exercised
during the year. As at 30th June 2024 and 2023, there is no

share option outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 FESHBREBE@)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
41.17 Employee benefits (Continued) 117 EEEF (&)
(d)  Bonus entitlements (d) TEAL#z
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a EAEEREECDIRMH
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive IR MEEBREETE
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and ST EME MZEMLE
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of THEASMGER  B5
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months B 2 TEA 2 TEET R
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when BB AEE - ME
they are settled. BRI BETRER

E+-—_@ARIHM I
LATEET R 2 & 5B5TE -

41.18 Provisions 11.18 1B
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or BERAEERBEEHME
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that @Zfﬁﬁ—irz%_&ﬁ?ﬁi%% 3
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; EEMERME LS EZIE
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not ET Rl - A AHZE
recognised for future operating losses. B REL A M - BHARK

LEZEBRYTEELEE -

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood MBIRE THEUEE  BEB
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by BEEMRE BRI LA 8
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is M DEERETBEERER
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any BT o BRI —HEEMNE
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. A —{EE B 2 &R E T aE

T\j( ’ 1)}/5\6@ u/u%1ﬁ

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures BEFANANXRZRBIESRT
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate BENEEEANFEIMNIBER
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money B RMNERMREKTISZES®
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision BEREAENEFEETEERR
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. BT Al o B 2 A 48 25 T 38 0

B EER R ERX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A5 ERaR b aE

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.19 Leases

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of

the following lease payments:
* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less

any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

®  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual

value guarantees;

® the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.19 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

®  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

® any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

41.20 Government grants

41.21

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and

the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised

using the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A5 ERaR b aE

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders for final dividend and Board of Directors for interim
dividend.

41.23 Losses per share
(1) Basic losses per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing:

. The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than

ordinary shares; and

® by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and

excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share adjusts the figures used in determination

of basic loss per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary

shares, and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of

all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial

years are as follows:

Results
(Loss)/profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company

ES
NERREG
(E1R) 4 7

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

BEERAE
BERE
BERE
FEYE LS

Capital and reserves attributable

to the Company's equity holders

RE BRI

K f#

Five Year Financial Summary

hEFBBHME

AEENBELEMRFESFZEE
BERABENOT :
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EFEMER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT BREWZ

As at 30th June 2024 and 2023, the Group had the following investment RZBEZMR=ZZT-=F,A=+H XK
properties in Hong Kong and The People’s Republic of China (“Mainland SEBBEUREERPEAM 2KEY
China"): 3

188

As at 30th June 2024

R-BE-mWEXA=1+H

Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
gl Hb 31 Rz HESIE FEEER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES /R ER
TEREEG-FHE Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on |lth
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB MR AR 9-15 5% R REHT 10-1657
BETERL2BAE 312F ¢B7R8E - 812
8BZE 1041234 56 7TR8E IR
8% - 2IB3ERKRA 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China  Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland T HER
TEREEMN— China
PR URPEAEREREMEFHER BN ZTEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [HES = H
B —BB Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BB MR AR 9-15 5% R REEHT 10-16557
BIET AL 14 R ISHEFBEL
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 [EES FRER

Mainland China

Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China

EE3 VNN B A RE T R R K 349 5 MODO B R %
e R KE 161612 16131614 1615k 1616

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

REFTHRRA



Schedule of Principal Properties

EX-2YE 25

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (Continued) BREWE #)

As at 30th June 2023

R-ZZBZ=HXA=1H

Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
it b 31k Ay HEHSE FEE#ER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES HRER
ITHERNEBMN—BH Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on | Ith
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [|2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB R B AR NI 9-15 5% R AR B HT 10-16 5%
BIETEPL2E4E  3B2E - 6B7R8E - 812
8ZE - I0#E1:-2-34-5-6-7TR8E IR
8FE - 1I2EB3ERKE 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland I% FHHA
THRAREEMN— China
hE A URPEAEREREMETHERA BN Z TEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [GES 2 HA
BB —FB Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BB R B AR NI 9-15 5% R AR B AT 10-16 5%
BT EAL3 S 14 R ISHEEM
Commercial office units ~ Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 [EES HER

Mainland China
PR NTEN —
AR A i

Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
R B A ROF T B A [ B R B 349 S MODO B AR B
R KE 16181612 16131614~ 161581616

z=
=23
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Company Directory
NEEE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Head Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: https://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Tel.: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

No. 25, Chiling Section,

Bolan Avenue, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755
Zip: 523940

Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756

No.| I3, Siheng Road, Zhuanyao Industrial Zone,
Wentang, Dongcheng District, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 769 2316 6636

Zip: 523121

Fax: +86 (0) 769 2316 3608

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ REFTHREAT
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Guangzhou Office:

A1806, Center Plaza,

No. 161 Linhe Road West,
Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
Zip: 510620

Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, 16th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 21 6440 3351

Zip: 200235

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.,
Qingpu Industrial Zone,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
Zip: 201707

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,
The People’s Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 532 8727 3101

Zip: 266300

Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110
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Xiamen Factory:

No.16-4 Putou Road,

Haicang District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,
The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 592 609 3211
Zip: 361027

Fax: +86 (0) 592 609 3600

Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 28 8328 5026

Zip: 610051

Fax: +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Tianjin Office:

Units 2204-2206, Tower A, Ronghui Plaza,
Nankai District,

Tianjin,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026

Zip: 300073

Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chonggqing Office:

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center,

No. 28 Minquan Road,
Yuzhong District, Chongging,
The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020
Zip: 400010

Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090

Vietnam Office:

Room 24, 8th Floor, AC Building,
No. 3, Alley 78, Duy Tan Street,
Dich Vong Hau Square,

Cau Giay District, Hanoi City,
Vietnam

Tel.: +84 (0) 35 5350080
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